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The core of the corporate brand is “Chinese herbal medicine”. The core of the corporate culture is
“culture of Chinese herbal medicine”.

Since the creation of the Bawang brand, with its inherited Chinese herbal medicine, the Group has
been using its unique knowledge and experience to spread the culture of Chinese herbal medicine and
strengthen its brand to extend the influence of Chinese national brand.

The Group has been focusing on the research, development, manufacture and sales of high quality
natural Chinese herbal products with good value. The Group strives to capture the essence of the
Chinese herbal medicine with a 5,000-year history and introduce to consumers a natural and healthy
lifestyle. The Group is aiming to promote its national brand to the global market.
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Financial Highlights

B 75 4 2

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENEF Change (%)
RMB’000 RMB’000 BH) (%)
AR Tt AR T T
Revenue = % 1,475,355 1,756,001 -16.0%
Cost of Sales & B A (564,017) (590,355) -4.5%
Gross profit EF 911,338 1,165,646 -21.8%
Selling & distribution costs $HE ko AR (941,811) (637,344) +47.8%
Administrative expenses THEA (101,511) (75,756) +34.0%
(Loss)/profit from operations L (B1E),/ R (131,573) 452,252 -129.1%
Income tax credit/(expense) s #E|In,(Z ) 16,160 (85,659) -118.9%
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity EwmiFAa AES
shareholders (E8),/ & F (117,971) 364,144 -132.4%
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (R BT
(RMB yuan) (AR®T)
Basic E=N (0.04) 0.15 -126.7%
Diluted e (0.04) 0.15 -126.7%
Final and Special dividends FRE BT BB
(HK Cents) (BED) - 8.5 N/A
Gross margin B | 61.8% 66.4% -4.6 % pts
Net loss ratio/Net Margin SFREERRFBE -8.0% 20.7% -28.7 % pts
Effective tax rate B & (12.0%) 19.0% N/A
Revenue by Product Category
BWARERBENS R
90% 95%

1.9% 0.5%

4.7%

3.4%

4.5%

2009

Change (%)

(%)

( (RMB’000) For the year ended 31 December h
(AR¥T ) BZE12H31HILFE
Shampoo & hair-care products 1,328,079 1,669,025 -20.4%
HEREER ’
Skincare products 27,272 8,049 + 238.8%
EEER
. Herbal tea 69,757 N/A N/A
PES
@ | Other products 50,247 78,927 - 36.3%
W =wER )

2
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Financial Highlights
BT %5 4 2

Revenue by Brand

Yo A #% & 1 5

67.4%

80.4%

22.6%

16.7%

4.7%

1.5%

0.0%

3.4%

0.4%

Change (%)
2009
( (RMB’000) For the year ended 31 December )
(AR®T ) EFE12H31HILFE
Bawang 993,817 1,411,110 -29.6%
HE
Royal Wind® 333,449 292,649 +13.9%
BE
. Bawang Herbal Tea® 69,757 N/A N/A
FIRHE
= Herborn® 21,822 266 N/A
rEE
Litao® 51,060 44,193 +15.5%
BiE
Smerry 5,450 7,783 -30.0%
L EXA J
Notes: B 5E -
1. Launched in May 2009. Revenue not directly comparable. 1. “ETAFRAME - THREKRAETEEL
2. Launched in April 2010. Revenue not directly comparable. 2. T -TENARD TRGKRAETEERL
3. Launched in December 2009. Revenue not directly comparable. 3. ZEENF+ZAEDL c TREBRAEITERE
5 e
4, Launched new product series in October 2010. 4, —E-ZEFTARETONERRY -
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Corporate Information
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Company Secretary
WONG Sin Yung CPA
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Corporate Information
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Kowloon

Hong Kong
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registrar and transfer office
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Corporate Information

LR R#H

Hong Kong Branch share registrar and

transfer office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17M Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Auditors

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
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10 Chater Road
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Hong Kong

Legal advisors on Hong Kong Law

Herbert Smith

23rd Floor, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Compliance advisor

Kingsway Capital Limited
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Hong Kong

Company’s website

www.bawang.com.cn
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board of directors of BaWang International
(Group) Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2010.

The year of 2010 was very challenging for the Group. During
the first half of the year, the Group was heavily engaged
in the successful brand building for four newly launched
products. As a result, our revenue for the first half of 2010
increased by 36.7% as compared to the same period last
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Chairman’s Statement

FREBEE

year. Into the second half of 2010, ever since the publication
of the inaccurate magazine article by Next Magazine in mid-
July 2010, our business operations were subject to major
interruptions, our brand
operating results declined significantly in the second half of
2010. The sales of Bawang (#%) branded shampoos for
the second half of 2010 significantly declined by 63.2% as
compared to same period of 2009. After making tremendous
efforts to rebuild our brand and corporate images, the directors
of Company (the “Directors”) consider that the Group has now
returned to normal operations, that we have started restoring

images were harmed, and our

consumers’ confidence, and that we strive to be innovative and
achieve brilliant results again in our business.

Looking forward, we will make use of our core competencies
and specialty in traditional Chinese herbs to research, develop,
and design advanced and competitive Chinese herbal HPC
products. We will continue to expand and/or optimise our
distribution network for our different branded products. We will
continue to increase our product lines and to implement multi-
product and multi-brand strategy, aiming to become a global
leader of branded Chinese herbal HPC products operator and
to bring the best returns to our investors.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) would like to take this
opportunity to express its gratitude to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder”), customers, suppliers, banks,
professional parties and employees of the Company for their
continuous commitment and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

7 AT
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Business Review

The total revenue of the Group for 2010 was RMB1,475.4
million, representing a decrease of 16.0% as compared to
2009. The Group has recorded a loss of RMB118.0 million for
2010 as compared to the profit attributable to the shareholders
of RMB364.1 million in 2009. Please refer to the Financial
Review section of this annual report for details of the operating
performance of the Group.

During the first half of the year, the Group was heavily engaged
in the successful brand building for four newly launched
products. As a result, our revenue for the first half of 2010
increased by 36.7% as compared to the same period last year.
Into the second half of 2010, the Group was in effect running
six branded product lines in three HPC categories as well as
making exceptional efforts and highly efficient and the effective
crisis handling measures to soften any impact caused by the
inaccurate media articles and/or news reports against the
Group.

7% [0 B

BEEEREAEFA T —TFELRKA
EARM147548 8L RZZETNF
EHA T BE 716.0% o NFERFRENL G
FEREEEARE1180EEL Mm%
TNFRHEERANAREIC41E8E
T AEBEKEEEEFTE  BL2HALF
WP IERBEIRG -

ESFEH¥F  AEEBESRKINHBKES
MAFHLERNRERERTIE &

SIE— T LH¥FNEELEF R
R3B7% - HEZE—ZTFTHF K&
B THEEL-"RBRRERAZEED
NERBIELIELE I - AEm K - R
B BN ERE R EBEB AR
BREERER KR AULEREMELE
WEMTE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRE W

In April 2010, the Group rolled out its first Chinese herbal
beverage product series “Bawang Herbal Tea (88 £ )R%Y)” with
Donnie Yen (Bi¥F}) as its brand ambassador. The products
have been available for sale since June 2010. As of 31
December 2010, the distribution network comprised around

212 distributors, covering 21 provinces and four municipalities.

During the year, the Group realized that because of the
intense competition in the HPC products in the PRC over the
past few years, some of the low-cost branded HPC products
were fading out from the market. As a result, there was an
opportunity for the Group to tap into this market segment.
The Group then started working on the repositioning and
enhancement of “Litao (B8/%)” range of natural-based shampoo
and shower gel products. In October 2010, the Group
successfully rolled out the enhanced product series, “Scent
with Smoothing (& ZLIE)”. In order to effectively promote the

—E-TFONA AKEELTEESP
BEEFHRINER — [BERAK] I
EREBTFAREEASZERNBBRER
A - ZEMB_T—TFXARER®T
HEE BE_T-TF+_A=1+—
B 2B eRAN21280HE - &
E21EED RAEEED °

EE—FE ANBEEFPEREM
AEEERTHHEF A BOEKAN
R R EEAEIRERBE L THIS -
At - AEEE —EEFEZAD T HNE
XK -AEEBENFREENYERE
mETEMIR  HHARAEYD AE
RESEERKMAABERRY - —F—
TETR  AEERNELFARRIES
RIEIFRFEm - BT ARBEREMT
R ORMBFTEIBLNSERNER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

brand image, the popular young singing group “S.H.E.” has
been appointed as its brand ambassador. As of 31 December
2010, the distribution network comprised approximately 349
distributors, covering 26 provinces and four municipalities.
The successful launch of the Litao (B8/&) range of enhanced
products has signified a successful extension of the Group’s
shampoo business to the mid-low end segment in the PRC
market which satisfies the demands of consumers and
achieves the Company’s goal to expand the consumer market.

In relation to Chinese herbal anti-dandruff shampoo series,
Royal Wind (& &%), the Group continued to expand its
sales and distribution network in 2010. As of 31 December
2010, the distribution network comprised approximately 482
distributors and 41 KA retailers, covering 27 provinces and
four municipalities. Further, the products were successfully
launched in Hong Kong and Singapore in 2009 and 2010
respectively.

In relation to Chinese herbal skincare products series, Herborn
(REE Z7%)), this series of products aims at white-collar
females aged between 25 and 45 who have high purchasing
power and pursue a healthy and natural lifestyle. As of 31
December 2010, the Group has successfully set up sales and

TR N B 75 W *‘*-ilﬁli |
g | e e
T T i |
pre .
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRE W

distribution networks comprising approximately 92 distributors
and 15 retailers covering 27 provinces and four municipalities
with 83 counters in department stores and/or hypermarkets
and 761 counters in cosmetics specialty shops. In addition,
the products have exclusively been sold at approximately 270
Mannings stores in Hong Kong since November 2010.

The internationally renowned celebrity Faye Wong (E£3F) has
continued to be the brand ambassador and to help us promote
the images of both Royal Wind (&/&) and Herborn (AN %)
brands.

In the aftermath of the “dioxane incident” as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 July 2010, the brand
image of Bawang () was adversely affected. The sales of
Bawang (¥ T) branded shampoos for the second half of 2010
significantly decline by 63.2% as compared to the same period
of 2009. Through the swift responses of the Company, we
have been able to maintain the confidence of our distributors
and retailers. As of 31 December 2010, the distribution
network for Bawang (8 F) branded products comprises
approximately 576 distributors and 43 KA retailers, covering all
27 provinces and four municipalities in the PRC. The products
have also been launched in overseas countries and regions
such as, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Myanmar, Thailand,
Malaysia, Brunei, and United Arab Emirates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In order to lift the corporate image, to restore consumer’s
confidence in the Group’s products and to develop immunity
for the Group to defend against vicious attacks in future,
the Company has undertaken the following marketing and
promotional initiatives:

In July 2010, five herbal tea formulae and the associated
terminology have been approved as National Intangible Cultural
Heritage by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China.

In August 2010, the Group was appointed as exclusive
sponsor of skincare products to the Miss World Pageant
China. Apart from providing our Herborn Chinese herbal
skincare products (ANE & £7%)) for the use of the contestants,
we also conducted a series of skincare seminars for the
contestants to understand the concepts and benefits of
traditional Chinese medicine.

In September 2010, the Group participated in a traditional
Chinese medicine exhibition (F &/ &2+ E177) in Beijing, which
was organized by 23 relevant organizations and government
departments in the PRC. The theme of exhibition was to
publicize the practice of Chinese herbal doctors and the
applications and benefits of traditional Chinese medicine.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In September 2010, our Royal Wind ((B8&Z7%!) branded
products was the title sponsor to a student contest known as
“Royal Wind Universiade Star ((BEKXEZ £)”, which elected
student ambassadors for the Universiade 2011 Shenzhen.
During the selection process, the contestant students were
drawn from university campuses all over the mainland
China. These young finalists helped the Group enhance the
understanding of the general public in the application of
traditional Chinese medicine.

Furthermore, in September 2010, the family of our chairman, Mr.
Chen Qiyuan, was recognized as “Renowned Traditional Chinese
Herbal Medicine Family (F#£t3K) by the Southern China
Steering Committee for Protection of Intangible Cultural Heritage.
In addition, a total of 8 Chinese herbal formulae comprising four
herbal haircare formulae and four herbal skincare formulae were
admitted to the list of protection. The intellectual property rights
of these formulae are officially protected.

In October 2010, the Group was selected as exclusive
providers of Bawang (#T) branded shampoos and some
of our HPC products to Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games
(the Asian Games”) for use by participating athletes and
guests inside game villages. The selection criteria laid by the
organizing committee of the Asian Games were very stringent.
At the end of the Asian Games, the Group was awarded a
certificate for outstanding achievement in product safety by
the organizing committee. This award casts a strong and
convincing vote on the good quality of Bawang (¥ £) branded
products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In November 2010, to signify the award of exclusive supply
contract for provision of Bawang (¥ ) products to the Asian
Games, the Company invited five Chinese sports champions
in various fields to say cheerio in a series of cheerio TV
advertisements for publicizing the Asian Games with the main
theme “Witnessing the Quality of Bawang Products whilst
En joying the Thriling Passions of the Asian Games”(“ %75 & T i
g H=Z0E ). The promotional posters featuring the five
sports champions were displayed at points of sales all over the
PRC. The Directors believe that the TV commercials on CCTV
and the promotional posters on nationwide basis would help the
Company spread the positive message to all tiers of cities in the
PRC and thereby enhance the corporate and brand image.

In November of 2010, our Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, was
recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Culture.

In terms of the recognition gained by the Group, the
Guangdong Provincial Bureau of New Hi-Tech Products
has recently awarded Certificate of New Hi-tech Product to
accredit the following three products series of our Group:

1. Bawang Anti-Hair Fall Shampoo
2. Bawang Hair Blackening Shampoo
3. Royal Wind Anti-Dandruff Shampoo
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In May 2010, a research development in the extraction of
contents from a Chinese herb called polygonum (fAl& &), was
admitted in the National Torch Program of China (BZ A EEtEl).

In June 2010, the Group was approved jointly by the
Guangzhou Provincial Bureau of Science & Technology, the
Development & Reform Commission, and the Economic &
Trade Commission of Guangzhou Municipality to set up a
research and development centre for the key projects in
relation to the Chinese herbal consumer products.

These achievements serve as recognition of the Group’s strong
capability in the research, development and industrialization of
Chinese herbal medicine.
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We are in the process of applying for the registration of a
number of patents relating to researches on Chinese herbs and
hair blackening, the successful registration of which will be a
further testament to the recognition and breakthrough in our
research and development of the Company.

Recent Events

We are of the view that the contents of the relevant magazine
article published by Next Magazine on 14 July 2010 are
defamatory of the Group and/or amount to malicious
falsehood. Therefore, we have commenced legal proceedings
in the High Court of Hong Kong against Next Magazine
seeking, inter alia, damages and an injunction to restrain
Next Magazine from publishing such contents or similar
contents. The legal proceedings against Next Magazine are still
continuing.

Financial Review

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB1,475.4 million, representing a decrease of 16.0% as
compared to RMB1,756.0 million in 2009. The sales decline
in 2010 was principally attributable to the substantial decline
in the sales of the Group’s shampoo products in the second
half of 2010 as a result of and in connection with the “dioxane
incident” as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 14 July 2010.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang (¥ £), generated RMB993.8
million in revenue, which accounted for 67.4% of the Group’s
total revenue for 2010, and represented a decrease of 29.6%
as compared to 2009. The sales of Bawang branded products
in the second half of 2010 significantly decreased by 64.0% to
RMB282.0 million as compared to the same period in 2009.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series,
Royal Wind (:8/8), recorded a revenue of RMB333.4 million
in 2010, which accounted for approximately 22.6% of the
Group’s total revenue for 2010, and represented an increase
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of 183.9% as compared to 2009. As Royal Wind (:&/&) was
launched in May 2009, the total revenue generated for 2009
and 2010 by this branded products may not be directly
comparable.

The first branded herbal drink of the Group, “Bawang Herbal
Tea (FBERA)” recorded a revenue of RMB69.8 million since it
was launched in April 2010, representing 4.7% of the Group’s

total revenue for 2010.

The natural-based branded shampoo and shower gel products
series, “Litao (E8/F)”, was repositioned and rolled out in
October 2010. This branded series generated RMB51.1 million
in revenue, which accounted for approximately 3.4% of the
Group’s total revenue for 2010, and represented an increase of

15.5% as compared to 2009.

The Chinese herbal skincare brand “Herborn (KREE)”
generated a total revenue of RMB21.8 million, which
accounted for approximately 1.5% of the Group’s total revenue
for 2010.

Smerry (3% A) generated a total revenue of RMB5.5 million,
which accounted for approximately 0.4% of the Group’s total
revenue for 2010.
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We generally sell our products through extensive distribution
and retail networks. During the period under review, sales
to our distributors and retailers represented approximately
81.3% and approximately 18.7% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively.

We launched our products in Hong Kong, Macao, Singapore,
Thailand, Myanmar, Malaysia, Brunei, and United Arab
Emirates in 2010. The sales to these markets outside the PRC
accounted for 4.2% of our total revenue for 2010.

Cost of sales for 2010 amounted to RMB564.0 million,
representing a decrease of 4.5% as compared to RMB590.4
million for 2009. Such decline was mainly due to the decrease
in sales of shampoo products, but partially offset by the
increase in sales of two branded products, namely Royal Wind
(38f&) and Litao (%), and the sales of the newly launched
Bawang Herbal Tea (8 £ /R 4%) branded products.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit
decreased to RMB911.3 million, representing a decrease of
21.8% as compared to RMB1,165.6 million for 2009. The
gross profit margin decreased from 66.4% for 2009 to 61.8%
for 2010. Such decline was mainly due to the change in
product mix and the increase in the proportion of the cost of
raw materials over the total revenue.

Selling and distribution costs increased to RMB941.8 million
for 2010, representing an increase of 47.8% as compared to
that for 2009. Such increase is due to the increased cost for
the launch of our new brand product, namely Bawang Herbal
Tea (FBEIRZE) in April 2010 and Litao (B8)%) in October 2010,
and the additional costs for sales and marketing promotional
campaigns in relation to restoration of consumers’ confidence
in the Group’s products after occurrence of the “dioxane
incident”.
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Administrative expenses for 2010 amounted to approximately
RMB101.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
34.0% as compared with approximately RMB75.8 million in
the same period in 2009. Such increase was mainly due to
non-capitalizable research and development expenditures,
administrative staff salaries and other benefits including share-
based payments.

The Group recorded an operating loss of RMB131.6 million
for 2010, as compared to the operating profit of RMB452.3
million for 2009. The Group’s operating margin decreased from
25.8% for 2009 to -8.9% for 2010. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in sales, increase in the proportion of the
costs of sales over the revenue and the increase in operating
expenses.

The Company had an income tax credit of RMB16.2 million
for 2010 as compared to income tax expenses of RMB85.7
million for 2009. This was due to the origination of temporary
differences in deferred tax and the bonus deduction of R&D
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2009, the approval
of which was obtained by the Group in 2010, partially offset by
a provision for Hong Kong profits tax.

As a combined effect of the above, the Group recorded an
attributable loss of RMB118.0 for the year ended 2010, as
compared to the attributable profit of RMB364.1 million for
2009. The Group’s net loss ratio stood at -8.0%.
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Prospect

The central government of the PRC announced in mid-
October 2010 the details of the 12th Five-Year Plan for national
economic and social development of China (2011-2015). One
of the key missions in this fiscal policy for the next five years
is to boost domestic consumption so as to steer its economy
away from the low growth brought by export and investment.

The majority of China’s population has benefited from the
continued economic boom. The Chinese government would
aim to restructure and rebalance the economy to reduce
inequality, to promote equal income distribution, and to
enhance the purchasing power of the people in rural areas and
townships by accelerating urbanization and increasing their
household income.

The Directors believe that such development would trigger a
demand for quality HPC products. The Directors are confident
that with the Company’s core competencies and unique
competitive advantages in the Chinese herbal shampoo and
other Chinese herbal HPC products in the PRC, the Company
should be able to take advantages of any opportunities to
increase our revenue and our market shares by offering new
brands and premium products.

While the Directors maintain an optimistic view of the macro
economy of China in the next few years, the Directors remain
cautious about the adverse impacts on the local and/or
global economy arising from the threat of inflation in China’s
economy, the concerns over the March 11 earthquake,
tsunami and the subsequent nuclear crisis in Japan, and the
violence in some of the countries in North Africa.

Ever since the publication of the inaccurate magazine article
by Next Magazine in mid-Jduly 2010, our business operations
were subject to major interruptions, our brand images were
harmed and our operating results declined significantly in the
second half 2010. After making tremendous efforts to rebuild
our brand and corporate images, the Directors consider that
the Group has now returned to normal operations, that we
have started restoring consumers’ confidence, and that we
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strive to be innovative and achieve brilliant results again in our
business. We set out below our business development plans
and strategies for 2011.

For Bawang (L %7%) branded products series, as part
of our restoration programme, we will continue to promote
the profound culture, applications and benefits of traditional
Chinese medicine so as to enhance the awareness of the
general public. We will strive to maintain our leadership in
the Chinese herbal shampoo market in China, to further
increase the revenue through extensive coverage of our
sales and distribution network into new areas, to deepen
the penetration of the existing established regional markets,
particularly those regions other than Southern China, to boost
the sales to the same retailer and distributor, and to expand
the revenue stream through the launch of enhanced product
and/or product series with new brand image so as to expand
the coverage of market segments and hence increase sales
revenue.

For the Royal Wind Chinese herbal anti-dandruff shampoo
series (BRE %)), we target to deepen the penetration of
the existing established sales channels so as to increase the
market share of the Chinese herbal antidandruff shampoo
market. We will continue to expand the distribution network for
Royal Wind brand (38/@) so that the market coverage can be
on the same level as that of Bawang brand (% £). At the same
time, we will streamline the existing product series whereby
we retain the hot selling items, enhance brand awareness and
brand image, and to increase consumers’ confidence. We
strive to build up this brand as another leading Chinese herbal
shampoo within the next few years.

For the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products series (2
B & 7)) branded products, we will continue to build up the
brand image through setting up counters in department stores,
hypermarket and dedicated shops. To broaden the revenue
base, we target to set up approximately 2,500 counters in
cosmetics specialty shops on nationwide basis in the PRC
We believe that Herborn would become a leading brand in
the Chinese herbal skincare market as well as one of our key
revenue contributors in the next three years.
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For Bawang Herbal Tea (BBELRZ), we will continue to
expand the sales network into the new areas and we plan
to deepen the penetration of the existing network that has
been established. We believe that this business segment will
become one of our revenue contributors this year.

As for new products, the Group successfully rolled out the
enhanced product series as natural-based shampoo and
shower gel products series “Litao”(B8)E % %)) in October 2010.
We may launch a new branded Chinese herbal household
cleaning product series, depending on the sales performance
of our existing product lines.

The Group will continue with its plan to lease a new production
premises located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou with an
estimated site area of 75,000 square meters. The construction
of the first phase of the new premises has already completed
and installation and fittings works will follow. Once the new
facilities of the first phase are in operations, we estimate
that the aggregate annual production capacity for shampoo
products, hair-care products, and skincare products will
increase by 100,000 metric tons to approximately 200,000
metric tons.

The Group plans to lease another production plant in Huadu
District, Guangzhou, for our herbal tea business. The site
preparation has been completed and the construction work is
in progress. We expect that the plant will finish for installation
and fittings in 2012.

The Company has already set up a Chinese herbal plantation
in Guangdong province in early 2010 and it has recently
harvested its first yield of Chinese herbs. The Company
is now replicating its agricultural practices for training and
development of farmers on how to maximise output in herbs
field cultivation. The Group is looking for more sites in other
places in China for setting up additional herbal plantation.
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In terms of our development plan in overseas market, the
Group will continue to explore the possibility with potential
distributors for launching our branded products to overseas
markets. The Group is exploring with potential distributors for
launching Bawang Herbal Tea (F8E)R%) in places including
Hong Kong, Singapore and Thailand.

The Company has successfully diversified into three different
segments of products. The Company intends to concentrate
its efforts and resources on the building of newly-launched
brands and also the strengthening of the established brands.
The Company does not have any outstanding acquisition
opportunity in hand. The Company will not actively explore
opportunities that may involve potential acquisition for the time
being.

Applications of Net IPO Proceeds

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately RMB1,615
million, after deduction of related expenses. We have utilized
such net proceeds in the manner consistent with that
mentioned in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 June
2009 under the section headed “Futures Plans and Use
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of Proceeds”. As such, the net
December 2010 was as follows:

proceeds utilized up to 31 —EF+ A=+ —HBREBEFEA
SAEERT :
Net IPO proceeds
HROMABREMBRIABHE
Available Utilised Unutilised
AR =5 )::] *EH
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(ARETIT) (AR®TT) (ARBTT)

Marketing and promotion

Research and development

EEE R 484,583 484,583 -

it R

FEFTE ™ 323,055 44,009 279,046
Expansion of distribution network R K onog B A K&

BN SRR 290,750 290,750
Capital expenditure BEARFY 193,833 36,739 157,094
Future strategic acquisition R BE MU 161,528 — 161,528
Working capital and other general EiBEES NHEM

corporate purpose —REERE 161,528 161,528 —

Total 1,615,277 1,017,609 597,668

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital MEHESRMBEER

Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies AEBEKBRTHIE R  #FR U
and maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary BENVBEMKR - REBESMHBEER

of liquidity and financial resources is set out below: BEH|EH M -
2010 2009
—E-TF —ETNF
RMB in million RMB in million
ARBEET AREEET
Cash and cash equivalents BeREeEEY 1,186.5 1,742.5
Total bank and other borrowings' RIT M H A B R 209.8 158.5
Total assets EEBEE 2,033.4 2,544.3
The gearing ratio? BEEBER? 10.3% 6.2%
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Note:

1. The borrowings were wholly denominated in US Dollars in 2010 and in HK
Dollars in 2009.

2. Calculate as interest-bearing borrowings divided by total assets

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or
disposal of any its subsidiaries or associated companies for
2010.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Related Hedge

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC,
with most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting
currency of the Group is Renminbi. The Group has exported its
goods to Hong Kong and certain Southeast Asian countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or
United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits
are mostly denominated in Reminbi. The Company will pay
dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In
addition, the Group paid certain advertising fees in United
States Dollars or Hong Kong Dollars. The Directors are of
the view that the Group conducts its business transactions
principally in Reminbi and thus the exchange risk at the
Group’s operational level is not significant. As at 31 December
2010, apart from a non-deliverable forward foreign exchange
contract entered into with a licenced bank in Hong Kong to sell
Renminbi for United States dollars, the Group had not issued
any material financial instruments or entered into any material
contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes. However,
the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and is prepared to take prudent measures such as
hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material capital liabilities as at 31 December
2010.
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Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2010, the capital commitment of the Group
was amounted to 27.9 million.

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2010, the Group employed approximately
4,663 employees (including staff members and contract
personnel) in the PRC and Hong Kong. Total personnel
expenses, comprising wages, salaries and benefits, and
equity-settled share-based payments, amounted to RMB143.7
million for 2010.

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on job responsibilities, work performances, professional
experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong joined social
insurance contribution plans and mandatory provident fund
scheme respectively. Other benefits include performance-
based incentive bonus scheme and share options granted or to
be granted under the share option schemes.

To enable our employees to reach their full potential, we
are committed to staff training and development. In 2010,
the Group organized 14 in-house training classes with
approximately 701 participants in aggregate.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources
policies play a crucial part in further development of the Group.
Promising career prospects, good staff remuneration and
benefits as well as pleasant working environment are essential
factors for maintenance of a stable workforce for the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Directors

The Board consists of eight Directors, including four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain
information in respect of our Directors:

=
EEEH\GEFAK  BENRRT

% ZFRTEER=EELED
FEE FARNBRESHET S
#

Name Age Position/Title

M FEe L3008 ]

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 49 Chairman and Executive Director

PR ROIR 58 4 ITRRNITES

Ms. WAN Yuhua 45 Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Executive Director
BEREELL ERRATERPITES

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi 45 Vice-CEO and Executive Director
NS BRFENITERPNITES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 56 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
HEREE MBHRERNTES

Ms. GUO Jing 44 Non-executive Director

P+ EHMITES

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung 49 Independent non-executive Director
BEIEEA BUFMITES

Mr. LI Bida 70 Independent non-executive Director
TVGESTAE BIFFRTES

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi 70 Independent non-executive Director

PR LA BUFNITES

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (BREBUR), aged 49, is the co-founder of
our Group, our chairman and has been our executive Director
since 12 November 2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of our Group.
Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in the Chinese herbal
HPC product industry, having been engaged in the consumer
chemical product business for over 17 years. Mr. CHEN and
Ms. WAN entered the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor
entity of the Company) in 1994 forseeing the growth potential
of the HPC product business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was
engaged in the trading of pesticides in the PRC before the
establishment of Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. He
has been serving as a research fellow in the Public Economics
Academy of Peking University (1bmAKZEAHEEERIT
A since 2007. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Culture. Mr. CHEN is the spouse of Ms. WAN.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREEBEHEAR

Ms. WAN Yuhua (B £%), aged 45, is the co-founder of our
Group, our CEO and has been our executive Director since
12 November 2007. Ms. WAN is responsible for the overall
strategic planning, marketing planning, sales and distribution
and research and development of our Group. Ms. WAN has
extensive experience in the Chinese herbal HPC product
industry. She has over 16 years experience in the consumer
chemical product industry in the PRC. She also has extensive
experience in the sales and corporate management. Prior to
the establishment of Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor entity of the company), Ms. WAN
worked in South China Botanical Garden, Chinese Academy
of Sciences (FEIEIE L ZEmREYIFHFTFT) as an engineer. Ms.
WAN has been serving as the deputy head of the Chamber
of Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China Federation of
Industry & Commerce (FEZ2BTHEBMAESEDLARE
&) since 2008. She was also elected Charismatic Leader
in Chinese Herbal Consumer Chemical Industry in China (#
B e AT ¥ NEEAY) by The Election Committee of
the National Industry Leading Brand (2 B77 348 5t 1> % S & 1
EAZE) in 2008. Ms. WAN obtained Guangzhou Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneurship Award (/M #7115 BB A% 5 Bt
#%) in 2008 from Guangzhou Personnel Bureau (BM A%
/@), a government body, and Guangzhou Overseas Chinese
Federation (& /N &5 B EH S ). Ms. WAN was elected Ten
Excellent Entrepreneurs for Chinese Brand Building (FF B & f&#
BERTAEBFLER) by China Enterprise Culture Improvement
Association in 2006. She was award a title for prominent
entrepreneur of product safety by the organizing committee in
2010. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in plant genetics from
South China Agricultural University (325522 A 2) in 1998. Ms.
WAN is the spouse of Mr. CHEN.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREEEHEAR

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi (Jt/M), aged 45, is our vice-CEO
and executive Director. Mr. SHEN joined our Group in
January 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director
on 10 December 2008. Mr. SHEN is responsible for the
implementation of our Group’s strategic plans and the daily
operations and management of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. SHEN held a number of senior management roles,
such as deputy chief engineer in high technology enterprises
in the PRC and deputy general manager in asset management
companies. He has more than 10 years experience in
technology management, introduction of foreign capital and
management of enterprises, which could benefit the Group
by (i) efficiently and effectively managing the operation of
the Group; (i) implementing the new ERP systems; and
(iii) facilitating the Group’s future fund-raising activities and
strategic investments. Mr. SHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree
in engineering in 1986 and a master’s degree in engineering
in 1989, both from Xi’an Jiaotong University (FZ 323 A
B). He also obtained a doctorate degree in engineering and
a post-doctor’'s research certificate in mathematics from
Chinese Academy of Sciences (BRI 22%) in 1994 and 1995,
respectively. He was conferred a professional qualification as
a deputy researcher by Institute of Applied Mathematics of
Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 EIRIE25 & A EEITHT)
in 1995. Mr. SHEN is the spouse of Ms. GUO Jing, our non-
executive Director.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREEBEHEAR

Mr. WONG Sin Yung (EZ#%), aged 56, is our chief financial
officer and executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in
April 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director on 10
December 2008. He is responsible for the finance management
and control, accounting, auditing, company secretarial and
investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (¥ & & EiEAR B R A7) (03398), from 2005
to 2008, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. WONG was
the chief accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong &
Associates (Industrial Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992
and from 1994 to 2003 respectively. He also worked for a
certified public accountant firm from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG
has over 27 years experience in corporate finance, accounting,
auditing, corporation administration, and project consulting.
He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a master’s degree
in human resource management from Macquarie University in
1996 and a master’s degree in business administration from
the University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREEEHEAR

Ms. GUO Jing (38&), aged 44, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. GUO was a senior accountant in a chartered
accountants firm in Canada since 2006. From 2002 to 2005,
she was a finance manager of FutureWay Enterprise Services
Inc., a company providing business consulting, accounting and
taxation services. From 1992 to 2001 Ms. GUO held various
senior management positions including finance manager,
deputy chief accountant, and chief accountant in Beijing Dali
Integrated Business Company (It RM A NERAEER ).
She has more than 15 years experience in strategic planning,
corporate finance, internal financial control and management,
professional accounting, and taxation services, which could
benefit the Group by offering professional advice to the
Board on the overall financial control and management of the
Group. Ms. GUO obtained a bachelor’s degree in biomedical
engineering and instrumentation from Xi’an Jiaotong University
(AL AE) in 1987 and a master's degree in internal
combustion engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology
At RIETKRE) in 1992. She was awarded a vocational
qualification as an accountant by the PRC Ministry of Finance
(FFEIBFEER) in 1997. She is a member of Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Ms. GUO is the spouse of
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi, our executive Director.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREEBEHEAR

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung (B#{21%), aged 49, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008.
He is currently the Managing Director of MNCOR Consulting
Limited, a speciality corporate and compliance services
provider to Companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO. Prior to
that, he was the director and head of listing services of KCS
Hong Kong Limited an independent integrated corporate
services provider. He is and has been a vice president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since 2002.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He
obtained a master’'s degree in corporate finance from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a master’s degree in
business administration from Andrews University of Michigan
in 1992. He is a doctoral candidate in finance at /&AL K
£ (Shanghai University of Finance and Economics). Mr. NGAI
has over 18 years of senior management experience, most of
which is in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control
and regulatory compliance for issuers including major red
chip companies. Mr. NGAI was an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of China Life
Insurance  Company Limited (B ASZRERGDERAF)
(02628) from 2006 to 2009, and is currently an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee
of China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (FP Bl
f&1nEBR A ")) (01186), China Coal Energy Company Limited
(PEFEEERBRMDBR2AR) (01898), Franshion Properties
(China) Limited (5 &HbE (FEI) BRAF]) (0817) and SITC
International Holdings Company Limited (/&%= ER
7x7]) (01308) and an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Bosideng International
Holdings Limited (% &1 BIBR 1% i A BR 72 7)) (03998), Powerlong
Real Estate Holdings Limited (ZBEHIEIEIRBR A F]) (01238),
Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Limited (=—2
HEPEIRR AR AR) (0631), Biostime International Holdings
Limited (&4 TBIFRIERAEFR AR (01112) shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and/or the New York Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LI Bida (Z=43), aged 70, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. LI was the head of Department
of Lawyers, the Ministry of Justice of the PRC (4 & @)% &8
20 7)), currently known as Department of Directing Lawyers
and Notarization, Ministry of Justice (713% %872 R A 5F L {E3E
% 7)), from 1988 to 1992. He was also an arbitrator in China
International Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission
(FEBEIREEEZE 5HMEEES) from 1989 to 1990. From
1992 to 1995, he served as standing deputy head of State
Trademark Bureau (BZREIZ/E). From 1992 to 2001, he
held various positions in State Administration of Industry and
Commerce (Bl X L7817 E 12 #8 /) including the head of the
Fair Trading Bureau (2 F X % @) and the head of Registration
Bureau (1t % 7 fft @). He was a consultant with a number of
companies, including Galanz Group (#& B £ 5 &) from 2001
to 2003, Perfect (China) Co., Ltd. (= (FE)BARBER A
7)), Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. (@5 ZFE:L AR Q7))
from 2001 to 2005, Ricoh China Co., Ltd. (2% (FE) & E
B BR A R]) from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China) Co., Ltd.
@ (R E) B ARERABERAE) from 2006 to 2007. He
is currently a member of the board of directors of Intellectual
Property Institute of Peking University (1b 5 A 22 &0 3% & #E 2
F%), professor of Renmin University of China Law School (F
AR KXEL2EP) and Capital University of Economics and
Business (E#8&5EZ 5 KE). Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Hubei University (# 1t X £) in 1965.

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi (FRBE#:), aged 70, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 8 April 2009.
Prior to joining us, he held various governmental positions in
Guangdong province from 1964 to 1998. He was promoted
to executive vice mayor of Guangzhou in 1992 and deputy
secretary of the Leading Party Group of Guangzhou Municipal
Government (BINTTEB/NEAHRIZEE) in 1993. From 1998
to 2005, he was the chairman and secretary of the Leading
Party Group of Guangzhou Political Consultative Conference
(BMTBIHBTEREMHAE). Since his retirement from his
governmental position in 2005, he held the position of vice
president of China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation (Ff Bk
X $9®), a charitable organization in the PRC. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree in political education from South China
Normal College (Z=FIRM&EIZ2FT), which is the predecessor of
South China Normal University (2 AT £5K22), in 1964.
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Corporate Governance Report

Code on corporate governance practices

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate
governance of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates
all such necessary measures in order to promote good
corporate governance.

The Company has adopted and complied with the provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during
the year.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 February 2011 with respect to certain previous
continuing connected transactions of the Company. In order
to prevent the occurrence of similar incidents in the future, the
Company has taken steps to strengthen the internal controls
over the procurement, accounting and payment cycles of all
transaction with connected persons and to conduct training
sessions for its management teams so as to reinforce the
importance of compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules governing connected transactions.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standards
for the directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.
Having made specific equiry with all Directors, the Company
confirms that the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2010.

Board of directors

The Board comprises eight members, including Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Vice-CEO, Chief Financial
Officer, one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Biographical details of the Directors
are set out in the section headed Directors and Senior
Management Profiles on pages 29 to 35 of this annual report.
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CEELIERSE

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the
Group’s strategies and policies, approving annual budgets
and business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group
and supervising the work of management. The management
is responsible for the daily operations of the Group under the
leadership of the CEO.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board must
determine that the Director does not have any direct or indirect
material relationship with the Group. The Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine the
independence of Directors.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in
order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
The CEO, Ms. WAN is the spouse of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and
non-executive Director Ms. GUO is the spouse of Vice-CEO,
Mr. SHEN. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
otherwise related to each other.

Four board meetings were held in 2010 and all Directors
attended these four meetings.

The remuneration committee comprises our executive Director,
Ms. WAN, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Ms. WAN is the chairperson
of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee are to make recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures none of our
Directors determines their own remuneration.

Two remuneration committee meetings were held in 2010.
During the meetings, the committee members reviewed the
Group’s remuneration policy and made recommendations
to the Board. All committee members attended these two
meetings.
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The nomination committee comprises our executive Director,
Ms. WAN, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Ms. WAN is the chairperson
of the nomination committee. The primary duties of the
nomination committee are to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and
the re-election of Directors.

Two nomination committee meetings were held in 2010. During
the meetings, the committee members review the senior
management structure of the Group. All committee members
attended these two meetings.

The audit committee comprises three Independent non-
executive Directors and one of whom possesses the
appropriate business and financial experience and skills to
understand the accounts of the Group. The audit committee is
chaired by Mr. NGAI Wai Fung and other members are Mr. LI
Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. The audit committee was formed
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Company.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the audit committee were prepared and adopted
with reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of
an Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the audit committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with the
external auditors, to review the Group’s interim and annual
results, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
internal controls of the Group, to review accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisers as it determines necessary and to
perform investigations.
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During the vyear,
following:

the audit committee has performed the

—  Met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope
and findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of

the external auditor’s remuneration;
— Made recommendations to the Board on the
reappointment of the external auditor;

— Reviewed the external auditor’s independence, objectivity
and the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— Reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and
interim results announcements of the Company;

— Discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters before recommending them to
the Board for approval; and

— Reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the
Group

The audit committee has reviewed the annual report with the
management and the external auditors and recommended its
adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the audit
committee have been addressed by the senior management of
the Company. The work and findings of the audit committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
were brought to the attention of the senior management of the
Company and the Board of sufficient significance for disclosure
in the annual report.

Four audit committee meetings were held in 2010. All
committee members attended these four meetings.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 57 to 58 of the annual report.

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a
sound and effective system of internal control of the Group so
as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of operations of
the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial
reporting and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate
assertions on the adequacy of internal control and procedures.
Through the audit committee of the Group, the Board review
the effectiveness of these systems on a regular basis.

Investor relations and communication with
shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels
with Shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies
of corporate communication documents to Shareholders; (i)
the annual general meeting provides a forum for Shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii)
latest and key information of the Group are available on the
website of the Company; (iv) regular press conferences and
briefing meetings with investors, Shareholders and analysts are
set up from time to time on updated information of the Group,
and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve the Shareholders
respecting all share registration matters.
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For the purpose of and in compliance with Rule 3A.19 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed Kingsway Capital
Limited as its compliance adviser for the period from 3 July
2009, being the date on which the Shares first commence
trading on the Stock Exchange and to the date on which the
Company dispatched its annual report in respect its financial
results for the full financial year after the date on which the
trading in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”).

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
external auditor, KPMG, for the year ended 31 December 2010
in relation to audit service are RMB1.25 million.
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The Directors submit the Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing,
manufacturing, trading and distribution of Chinese herbal
products, including shampoo products, hair-care products,
skin-care products, herbal tea products and household
cleaning products. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 107 to 109 of this
annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page
59 of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the financial year 2010 are set forth in note
22(d) to the financial statements of this annual report.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions amounted to RMB1,340.0 million.

Major customers and suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2010, sales
made to the Group’s top five customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 8.6% and 3.8%
respectively of the total sales of the Group. The Group
purchased approximately 37.6% and 13.5% respectively of
its goods and services from its five largest suppliers and the
largest suppliers.
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 155
of this annual report.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Share capital and share options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in note 22(c) and
note 20(b) to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”) or the laws of
Cayman lIslands which oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float during
the year ended 31 December 2010 and up to the date of this
annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2010 amounted to RMB1.4 million.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
Ms. WAN Yuhua

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi

Mr. WONG Sin Yung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. GUO Jing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung
Mr. LI Bida
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on
pages 29 to 35 of the annual report.

In accordance with articles 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan will retire and being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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In accordance with articles 83(3) of the Articles, Ms. GUO
Jing and Mr. NGAI Wai Fung will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a director’s
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
three year commencing from the Listing Date and will continue
thereafter until terminated by no less than six months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other, which shall not
expire until after the fixed term.

Each of our non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with our Company. Each letter of appointment is for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company has entered into any service contract with the
Company which cannot be terminated by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers all
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”), which were required
(@) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they had taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and
were entered into the register that was required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”):

Long Positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company
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Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held issued
Name of director Class of Shares Nature of interest B RER share capital
EERE 13 | BaHtg K& E BFRESL
CHEN Qiyuan Ordinary Corporate (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 65.37%
bR BUR S A A (HFET)
WAN Yuhua Ordinary Corporate (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 65.37%
BEE 5= Al (HEE2)
SHEN Xiaodi Ordinary Personal 1,680,000 0.06%
NE A & A
WONG Sin Yung Ordinary Personal 1,260,000 0.04%
HER S 1 A
GUO Jing Ordinary Personal (Note 3) 1,680,000 0.06%
20 & A & A (K 3E3)
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Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by CHEN Qiyuan and
WAN Yuhua. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to be
interested in WAN Yuhua'’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

2. WAN Yuhua is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by WAN Yuhua and
CHEN Qiyuan. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to be
interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

3. GUO Jing, the spouse of SHEN Xiaodi, is deemed to be interested in the
options granted to SHEN Xiaodi under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010,
so far as known to any Directors or chief executive of the
Company, neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be and were entered into in the register that was
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders of the Company

As at 31 December 2010, so far as known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, shareholders (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register that was required to
be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BHtEt-Z—ZF+-_A=+—H ' UT
ATGERRARZEFTIZRITHRAB)R
BOKBEBRODTHEEREESRBE
&G EXVEB B2 K37 BB RI R FE AR AR
AIMBRMERENERIARE - HRIE
BENMBEKGFEIB6KEETAEBELR
EFEMNTEMANEZS AR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held share capital

BREE EaHH"E Kin& BFRESL

Fortune Station Ltd. Corporate 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.37%

Fortune Station Ltd. ~A]

CHEN Qiyuan Corporate (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.37%
bR RUR ~aE (M)

WAN Yuhua Corporate (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.37%
BEE ~aE (fEE2)

Deutsche Bank AG Corporate (Note 3) 231,557,209 (L) 7.96%
REERITROHBR A 2~ (M 3)

(L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position

Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is the beneficial owner of 51.0% of the issued share capital
of Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Fortune Station Ltd. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to
be interested in WAN Yuhua's interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

2. WAN Yuhua is the beneficial owner of 49.0% of the issued share capital of
Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Fortune Station Ltd. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to
be interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

3. Deutsche Bank AG is a global financial service company and is listed on both
the Frankfurt and the New York stock exchanges.
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1. BRERJR A& Fortune Station Ltd. B Z{1TAXANEY
51.0%E = A A - WH R R Fortune Station
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Share option scheme and Pre-IPO share
option scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a
share option scheme dated on 8 June 2009 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
purpose of which is to give the Directors, senior management
and employees an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company and help motivate its employees to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to retain employees
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. As at 31 December 2010, no options
have been granted or agreed to be granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme.
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A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to
two executive Directors on 8 June 2009, which was partially
exercised as at 31 December 2010 and the details are as
follows:

Number of share options

R-ZZEZNAFENANB  REHLEMRA
17 E E 4 ££4,200,000 % 9 & X A 5
BENERE BLE-_ZFT-—FTF+= H
=+—H ZERESHSWITE
BRI T -

BRiHERE
Approximate
percentage of
As at As at  issued share capital
1 January Granted  Exercised 31 December of the Company
Exercise 2010 during during 2010 (%)
price (HKD) #E the period the period HE (FLFERTERE  Exercise
Name of director Date of grant {TH#{E —Z2-2f M B —Z-2% HBHESL  Period
EEEB #iEA (B71) —-A-8 B¥HA fT#%E +-R=+-H (%)  fTHRHAE
SHEN Xiaodi 8 June 2009 Par Value 420,000 - 420,000 1,680,000 0.06 4 July 2010 to 8 June 2019
NV —ZTNE  EE —E-ZELANAZE
~ANR —T-NERANE
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2011 to 8 June 2019
HfE —E-—ftANAEZE
ZE-NERANE
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2012 to 8 June 2019
mE —E-ZFLANAEZE
ZE-NFRANR
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
mfE —E-ZFtAMEZE
ZE-NFRANR
Par Value 420,000 - 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
mE “E-MELANAEZE
ZE-NFRANR
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 840,000 — 840,000 1,260,000 0.04 4 July 2010 to 8 June 2019
HER “ZTNFE  EE “Z-ZELANAZE
NANE ZE-NAFRANR
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2011 to 8 June 2019
HfE —T-—FLAMNEZE
—ZE-AFXRANR
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2012 to 8 June 2019
HfE “T-ZFLAMAEZE
—ZE-AFXANR
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
HE “T-=FLAMmAEZE
—E-NAFXANR
Par Value 315,000 - 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
HfE ZE-MELANAEZE
ZE-AFXANR
Grand Total 4,200,000 - 1,260,000 2,940,000 0.10
RT8%
Apart from the above, options to subscribe for totalling BRULLASN - EZZFEZAFANR R

10,332,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were granted to 40 employees of the Group on 8 June 2009.
Of which, options to subscribe for totalling 420,000 Shares

BEX A ARABERBRESS X5
10,332,000% B 1 HY BE A #E D B2 48 7 &N
EEI0FBEB - HEp > ZHARTFTRERE
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previously granted to two employees were forfeited in August
2009 and April 2010 respectively. As at 31 December 2010,
there was a balance of unexpired and unexercised options to
subscribe for 8,351,280 Shares for 38 employees. Except for
the options which had been granted, no further options were
granted as at 31 December 2010. Details of the valuation of
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 20 under
the section headed “Notes to the Financial Statements”
to this annual report. The value of options are subjective
and uncertain as such values are subject to a number of
assumptions and limitations of the valuation model.

A. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
had the following non-exempt connected transactions
and had complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement
Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang
Guangzhou”) entered into a production and
office premises lease agreement with Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd (“Guangzhou
Bawang”) dated 22 January 2008, pursuant to
which Bawang Guangzhou agreed to lease from
Guangzhou Bawang a production premises and
an office premises, both located in Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC (the “Production and Office
Premises Lease Agreement”). The term of the
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement
is three years commencing from 4 December 2007.
The monthly rent is approximately RMB184,000 and
is fixed throughout the term of the lease. We have
also been granted a right of first refusal to purchase
the production premises and office premises
under the Production and Office Premises Lease
Agreement. The Production and Office Premises
Lease Agreement is renewable at the option of
Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month notice
prior to the expiry of the lease. The agreement has
been renewed on 21 January 2011 for a term of
three years commencing from 4 December 2011,
and the articles is maintained.

B 48 +£420,0000% f& 15 HY B IR #E - 7 BIIE
—ETZAFENAN_Z-TFEMN A
BeBIEZE—ZFTF+HA=+—80"
AT ARFETENEBRESREZ
8,351,280[% - & 7 E il B & & H & BB
- Bzxz-_ZT—=ZF+-_A=+—8"
BEAMERERD - ROBETS®
HEFRAYBEREWF20 - ZHERE
FEMEBLE  ERTHANZER
F R EEABRS o

A RBRELITTHRBEFUSALK HLE-F
—ZF+-_A=+—8 A&EHAF
THEREEH RS o

1. HERERBABEE RS
BIL(EMBRRR(ATEH
BBIEMNDR-_FZTNEF
—AZt-HEEMNBFE i
AR AR (AT @M EMNEB
E DA~ EERE M A
BEEWZ Bt FBEEIMN
R E R EMIBZEEBAR S E
EMNBERNEERE MR
g HAEESME-_ZTTt+F+=
AMBE  SH=% - AELY
= AR 184,083 7T I /£
ERARBTE - RELEM
BEhkpr@ElEERE  RIFT
ERBELERE LK AED
Bt - EERE LB AEHE
EHEABABEEMNNEERE
mATEHL —BEABMTIAE
HoZaRR_E——F—H
“T-HERBEHE=F2_%F
—=Ft+t-A=8  GHES
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, pursuant
to the Production and Office Premises Lease
Agreement, the annual rent paid by Bawang
Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was
approximately RMB2.2 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua are directors
of the Company. Guangzhou Bawang is company
beneficially owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms.
WAN Yuhua. The transactions contemplated
under the Production and Office Premises Lease
Agreement  therefore  constitutes continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Packaging Material Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered
into a packaging material supply agreement with
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products Company
Limited (“Chenming Paper”), pursuant to which
Chenming Paper agreed to supply packaging
material to Bawang Guangzhou from time to
time at fixed unit prices for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2009 (the “Packaging
Material Supply Agreement”). Bawang Guangzhou
and Chenming Paper will review the prices offered
by Chenming Paper at least once annually to
ensure that they are at market prices or at prices
no less favourable than those offered to Bawang
Guangzhou by independent third-parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, pursuant
to the Packaging Material Supply Agreement,
the annual transaction amount for the supply of
packaging material by Chenming Paper to Bawang
Guangzhou was approximately RMB9.0 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company.
Chenming Paper is wholly owned by Mr. CHEN
Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s brother. The
transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitutes
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

BE-T-BET-A=1-
B R ERERAAEE
Sl - BE RN EN B
EMERHESHARK22E

4t —

H=IL °

REUREENBEEELLHE
ARREE MEMNBEEE
TERMBREENEEEX
THEES - REBELTHRAR
E o REEBELERABEE
Whag NETHIR BB E R

BRS

BEREHH R
BIRMERMEREMRBR
AAR(ATHBEIRALMR])
RZZEZANF=RA=+NBZ]
Y- BERMH‘ERE - &
b RARREE TR ABEE
BUBRRABEEMNEEEE
wE - B-ZFEENF A —H
B AH=F -BIEMNIE
PRRRBEFEL —RFER
AR mRENER - UERE
FERNT A M ERTER BB
YE=EBEREMIEMED
B -

HE—_Z2—ZF+=-_A=+—
B RBREBRDHEEERS -
BIEMEEMNEHEERER
RAZFERFGEHNAEARE
9.0B&TT °

REUREERARANES o
BEMERAERER A HREK
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Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered
into a toothpaste container supply agreement with
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging Material Co., Ltd.
(“Qiancai Packaging”), pursuant to which Qiancai
Packaging agreed to supply toothpaste containers
to Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at fixed
unit prices for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2009 (the “Toothpaste Container
Supply Agreement”). Bawang Guangzhou and
Qiancai Packaging will review the prices offered
by Qiancai Packaging at least once annually to
ensure that they are at market prices or at prices
no less favourable than those offered to Bawang
Guangzhou by independent third-parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of toothpaste
containers by Qiancai Packaging to Bawang
Guangzhou was approximately RMB2.7 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company.
A majority equity interest in Qiancai Packaging is
owned by Ms. WU Xiaotao, who is Mr. CHEN’s
sister-in-law. The transactions contemplated under
the Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement
therefore  constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group also entered into non-exempted connected
transactions as disclosed in an announcement
(the “Announcement”) of the Company dated 25
February 2011.

Qiancai Packaging Supply Agreement

During the period from 1 June 2010 to 30
September 2010, Bawang (China) Beverage Co.,
Ltd. (“Bawang Beverage”) purchased certain
packaging materials, such as carton boxes and
paper boards from Qiancai Packaging. Details of the
transactions were disclosed in the Announcement.
The total transaction amount for the supply of
packaging materials by Qiancai Packaging to

EUEHERZ
%ﬁfﬁﬂléﬂﬁ)llfﬁm&nﬁﬂ
ERARAATEHBIEXRXE
EMRIDR=_ZZEZENFE=A
ZH+NHIY—MOTFEHRE
HERZ - Bt BREEM
BREE Tﬁﬂ%lﬁmufﬁﬂﬁ
FIEMNEEIFEHRE B
TENF— ﬂ B BEH=
Fo-BIEMEBERBEMK
BEFEL - RAAEBRBE
MRHEHMER - WERERE
EBREDFEMEXTERHAE
NEZARETEIMNTIRED

EE
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$E}Jf5f $I P &
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Bawang Beverage was approximately RMB2.5
million.  Since 30 September 2010, Bawang
Beverage has ceased all purchases from Qiancai
Packaging.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company.
A majority equity interest in Qiancai Packaging is
owned by Ms. Wu Xiaotao, who is Mr. CHEN’s
sister-in-law. The transactions were therefore
considered as connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole,
and the respective annual caps are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued a letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group above in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule
14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The auditor has the following conclusions in his letter on
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group:

a. nothing has come to his attention that causes him
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s
board of directors. The auditor draw to the attention of
the board of directors that the continuing connected
transactions entered into by Bawang Beverage with

RHBBEHNR/RARK258E
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B BIKHDEREEBX
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Qiancai Packaging (“the Purchase Transactions”) during
the year ended 31 December 2010 were approved by the
Company’s board of directors on 25 February 2011.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to his attention
that causes him to believe that the transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to his attention that causes him to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

d. except for the Purchase Transactions, with respect
to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions as disclosed above, nothing has
come to his attention that causes him to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 June 2009 (“the
Prospectus”) made by the Company in respect of each
of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.
A maximum aggregate annual value had not been
pre-determined by the Company when the Purchase
Transactions were entered into during the year ended 31
December 2010. Accordingly, no maximum aggregate
annual value has been disclosed by the Company with
respect to the Purchase Transactions in the Prospectus
and in any announcement made by the Company during
2010.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the financial year.

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business, which competes
or may compete with the business of the Group.
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The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees
in the PRC, and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the
employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans
are set out in note 2(j) to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, save as
disclosed in the corporate governance report on pages 36
to 41 of the annual report, all the code provisions set out in
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the Company.

The Company has established the audit committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has also complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules and appointed three independent non-
executive Directors including one with financial management
expertise. The primary duties of the audit committee (inter
alia) are to review the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The audit committee also provides
advice and suggestions to the Board. The audit committee
has reviewed the audited annual financial statements of the
Group contained in this annual report with the management of
the Company and the Company’s independent auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B Lz BRD ¥R

e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (“the
company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the group”) set
out on pages 59 to 154, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
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perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the group as at 31 December 2010
and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
EHERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-—TF+_A=+—HIFE
(AARMITR)

Note 2010 2009
B3t —E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBETF T
Turnover EE X 5 1,475,355 1,756,001
Cost of sales 85 & Pl A (564,017) (590,355)
Gross profit EF 911,338 1,165,646
Other revenue H b g 2= 1,810 —
Other net losses H b A8 558 (1,399) (294)
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko AR (941,811) (637,344)
Administrative expenses THEHR (101,511) (75,756)
_(Loss)/profit from operations  &# (B#®) wA (181,57) 452252
Finance income 81 75 U A 6(a) 13,043 2,322
Finance costs WiEE A 6(a) (15,601) 4,771)
_Net finance cost = ME®RAF®E 00 (2558) (2,449)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRATEH AT (BE),
i A 6 (134,131) 449,803
Income tax credit/(expense) T8 #E|In,(ZH) 7(a) 16,160 (85,659)
(Loss)/profit for the year KAREZEEEA
attributable to the equity EhEER (EBE)/
shareholders of the Company gl (117,971) 364,144
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EE)BA
(RMB yuan) (AR®T)
Basic AR 11(a) (0.04) 0.15
Diluted s 11(b) (0.04) 0.15

The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial EOTE14ENM T R A BIHREK N —
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders D  BNARREEFH ARENF
of the Company are set out in Note 22(b). 15 & 5 BT 5222(b)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AN A = A LI&
— 3 miN

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in Renminbi)
BHE_ZT—ZTHF+-_A=+—HILtFE
(AAREIITR)

\ /
2

2010 2009
—E-2F ZZTTNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
(Loss)/profit for the year KAREZEEA
attributable to the equity EhEER (EBE)
shareholders of the Company i A (117,971) 364,144
Other comprehensive income FREMEGEE WG
for the year
Exchange differences on translation ~— # & fh F BN 7 2
of the financial statements MR EER
of the operations outside the PRC ENER (18,497) (108)
Total comprehensive income KAEEEEFEA
for the year attributable to EHFERGEKRE
the equity shareholders wE
of the Company (136,468) 364,041
The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial FE67TEE154 B KM 3F B AN BT 75 3 & &Y
statements. —&5H o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEEESR

At 31 December 2010

(Expressed in Renminbi)

W-T-EE+-A=+-A

(AAR®SIR)
Note 2010 2009
B3t —E-FF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBETF T
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKE 12 60,136 39,330
Prepaid advertising fee A ESEA 2,437 6,081
Deferred tax assets BB IEEE 21(b) 27,089 —
e 89662 - 45,411
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 14 84,216 60,384
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H th fE W GRIE 15 440,060 534,009
Pledged deposits RT3 16 220,000 162,012
Cash and cash equivalents HEeREREEEY 17 1,186,544 1,742,523
Income tax recoverable JRE Uiz B B P 45 R 21(a) 12,892 —
o 1943712 ¢ 2,498,928
Current liabilities b =K
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN IR 18 228,793 293,839
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERREL 19 209,787 158,490
Amounts due to related parties JE A< A B 5 BRI 25(b)(i) 3,363 5,896
Income tax payable FETRDERFT 15 B 21(a) - 31,820
L. 441948 490,045
_Netcurrentassets =~~~ #®BRE¥E 0000000 1,501,769 2,008,883
Total assets less BEERABAR
___ current liabilites 1591431 ¢ 2,054,294
The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial FOTEI4EMW T AR HHRERH —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

EHEERARER(R)

At 31 December 2010
(Expressed in Renminbi)
RZZE-—ZTF+-_A=+—H
(AANR®ZIR)

Note 2010 2009
B & —E-ZfF ZZTTNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities  BEBAARK 210 2031 20,062
Net assets EEFE 1,589,400 2,034,232
Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital & A 22(c) 256,380 256,134
Reserves & 22(d) 1,333,020 1,778,098
Total equity R 1,589,400 2,034,232
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of KAAEEFEe R _2——F=H
the Company on 28 March 2011. —+ N\ B#E R IRRE T o
Director Director
g% )
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
R BUR BEXE
The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial FOTE14ENMEARTHBREAN —
statements. o o
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Balance Sheet
BEEHER

At 31 December 2010
(Expressed in Renminbi)

N-F-FE+-A=+—A

(AAR®Z|IR)
Note 2010 2009
Bt 5 —E-TF —ETHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Non-current assets *RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries  AKEAFRMRE o -
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables E b fE YR IE 15 1,471,397 416,051
Pledged deposits TR TR 16 — 162,012
Cash and cash equivalents HekREeEEYD 17 100,104 1,031,999
Totalassets AER® 1,571,501 1,610,062
Current liabilities REBEE
Otherpayables ~ HfEFZHE .o 85 8,136
Netcurrentassets =~ #®BREFE 00000 1571,146 1,601,926
Total assets HWEE
less current liabilties BARBEE 1,571,146 1,601,926
Net assets EEFE 1,571,146 1,601,926
Capital and reserves EARRFE
Share capital J% Z< 22(c) 256,380 256,134
Reserves 1 22(a) 1,314,766 1,345,792
Total equity R EE 1,571,146 1,601,926
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of ARAlESEgEenN_E——F=H
the Company on 28 March 2011. T+ NBHE R -
Director Director
] =t
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
R BUR BEEE
The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial FOTE14ENMEARTBREN —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AHEEEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in Renminbi)

BE-—T-—T#+-FA=+—HAItFEE

(AARESIR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ANRERBEAEL
Retained
PRC earnings/
Share Share statutory Capital Merger  Translation (accumulated Total
Capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
HEEE BEai/
[ BRAEE & EXARE Bt RE ELifE (RHER) BRAE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT ARETT AR®TR ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARET:
(Note 22(c)  (Note22(c))  (Note22(d))  (Note22(d))  (Note 22(d)  (Note 22(d))
Balance at RZBELE
1 January 2009 —-R—-A&e% - - 4,949 251,224 314,528
Changes in equity “EEAERERE:
for 2009:
Total comprehensive FRGENEER
income for the year - - (109) 364,144 364,041
Issue of new shares BATHR 256,134 - - - 1,598,908
Dividends declared ERERARE
during the year (Note 22(0)) (i #22(0)) - - - (249,680) (249,680)
Equity settled share-based ~ SAIE & B B 17
transactions (Note 22(d)) AR5 (HFE22(d) - 6,435 - - 6,435
Balance at R-ZBZLE+ZA
31 December 2009and =t-AR=-Z-Z%
1 January 2010 -A-R&H 256,134 6,435 4,846 365,688 2,034,232
Changes in equity for “EI-SERESE:
2010:
Total comprehensive FRGANREE
income for the year - - (18,497) (117,971) (136,468)
Dividends declared FRERHRE
during the year (Note 22(b)) (B 5£22(0)) - - - (317,708) (317,708)
Shares issued under REREREE
share option scheme BEIRRN
(Note 22(c) (WE22(c)) 246 (5,180) = = 931
Equity settled share-based ~ LAIE & BRI 1) L+
transactions (Note 22(d) 2 5 (Kis22(d) - 8,413 - - 8,413
Balance at R-B-Z%+=A
31 December 2010 =t+-R&H 256,380 9,668 (13,651) (69,991) 1,589,400
The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial FOTER14BE R B AN G HET A —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

iﬁl/\.&i =
sz Jiu B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

(Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_Z-—ZTFF_HA=1t—HLHFE
(AAREITR)

Zi

2010 2009
—E-ZfF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T AREETF T
Cash flows from operating activities KETHELENESRE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRETE R AT (EE), & T (134,131) 449,803
Adjustments for: KTFIERAE
Depreciation e 8,252 6,721
Net loss on disposal of property, V- BER&RED
plant and equipment BEFEX 73 1,415
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts %t‘*’ ﬂfﬁ =S 149 1,549
Write-down of inventories BEHRELER 10,811 -
Interest income on bank deposits 1717 3K B A (13,043) (2,322)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses 515 HFIRER (W) 1Bk (14,280) 1,987
Equity-settled share-based LAHE 25 45 B E’J A% 19
payment transactions SRV 8,413 6,435
Investment income wE W ﬁT’i (1,810) —
Subtotal NET (135,566) 465,588
Change in inventories FE# (34,643) (8,392)
Change in trade and other receivables B 5 N H e U FRIE & &) 109,472 (400,165)
Change in trade and other payables ZEH5KEAM F’?f H RIEE & (65,046) 114,423
Change in amounts due from related parties & U B8 Bt 75 Qiﬂ - 132,746
Change in amounts due to related parties JE 1<) A BS: 7 3K IE&@U (2,533) (138,446)
Change in prepaid advertising fee BNEEEBEH 3,644 (6,081)
Cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FTR) EEXN
operating activities BHe (124,672) 159,673
Income tax paid =EIZIECE! (73,672) (53,802)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (A EEW
operating activities B FH (198,344) 105,871
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEENESRE
Interest received B UF & 13,043 2,322
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment B EW ¥ HE LR E (44,803) (18,761)
Proceeds from sales of other investments HEEMRENATERIE 1,811,790 —
Acquisition of other investments 1S H 12 & (1,809,980) -
Net cash used in investing activities BREEE A
BEFHE (29,950) (16,439)

The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

EHBReRER(K)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-_T-—ZTF+-_A=1+—HBLEE
(AANREIR)

2010 2009
—E-ZfF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEF T
Cash flows from financing activities METHELENEESRE
Proceeds from issuing of new shares BITHRATE IR 931 1,615,277
Payment of share issuing cost AT IR P SZ AT BRCAR = (5,145)
Cash from bank loan and overdrafts BITERREIMESRS 209,787 158,490
Repayment of bank loan and overdrafts BEBRTERRBEX (158,490) -
Increase in pledged deposits AR 17 )8 N (57,988) (162,012)
Dividends paid 2RRE (317,708) (249,680)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BmEZEH(FTA)
___financing activites EEfReR® (323,468) 1,356,930
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRBREEEY
cash equivalents OR &),/ 18 bn 7% 58 (551,762) 1,446,362
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HBHRER
at 1 January BEeELEY 1,742,523 298,148
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on EXEHEHFERE
cash held EofA (4,217) (1,987)
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+=ZA=+—HW®
at 31 December RERRESEEY 1,186,544 1,742,523
The notes on pages 67 to 154 form part of these financial FOTEI4ERMM T AR B REKH —
statements. o o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 2} Y &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REBHRBI  BAARETR)

1

Reporting entity

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 11 December 2007 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “Group”). The Group
is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
household and personal care products. The Group is also
engaged in the sales of herbal tea products since June
2010.

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

BIBREBERARAR
((RX2BRDR=-_ZFFTLF+=-A
T—BEREBEFNEBEERRDEE22

BE(—NAAN—FEMS Kixae kiE
FEHREHETMRNLAERE
BAR A A o Hak it 55k a ik
& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

BE_Z—ZF+_-_A=1+— EIJJ:
EF‘E’JAGﬁﬂ“ﬁi’%@%ZX

HBE B (RHEIAKHE]) - ZIK%
BEBRERERBEERBEAZ
BEMER AKEN_T—FTF
NABRREHERRERER -

FESBX

AP BRI VIZBERE G E
AZEg([BRES /&E'Jié
S ) MR M BB B R R A
Al (TR B B 7% & B &R
2 BRI REERNSEMR
B 58 P (8 ) BB B 75 3R 5
A B R (HRER
R ) RABERE - AME R
RN E FBCR BRI B3
BRELBBBARIMAR
RE([EBBRZ @S LT
#5 R B 4 PR I BB MRS » AR
FrER AR £ B & 5T BUR S a0
T o
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HERRAELRAEEEH
H 2 B T S BR 70 AN B 7% SR R
Hi N DA BT & 5t BRI B9 & 5t BUR
Z‘ZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

68

[tems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant
to the entity (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand except per share
data.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 27.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESITHBE®

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2(i)).

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at exchange rates at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency
differences arising on retranslation are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

W%”7Em$¢.?ﬂmi
B -EAEEAREELHE
ZHIE A IS RS E R

I & b H S BUS A
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Bl o ERT I ER - 2EE
BRIFIITENEERERE -

R BRENKRE B EH MR
EREEEHERE A LA
BOMB®RE - SEREEE

MR5 @ AREBELER %%%E
MEFRARERMNE  ERR
B B HmRE T AEHE - &
BANRXZAEENARERE
BRAEEELREREZROE
SN A SR B IR ARE AR
B T LA -

RHBRARNKEERANGE
E A ERP TR AR R (E
B8 51 BR (R B 5E2(3)) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

70

(continued)

The assets and liabilities of operations with
functional currency in foreign currency are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date. The income and expenses
of operations with functional currency in foreign
currency are translated to RMB at exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and are presented within
equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

() Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(ii) Non-derivative financial assets
A non-derivative financial asset is recognised if
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Non-derivative financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Non-derivative financial assets of the Group
comprise trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see Note 2(i)()), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

72

(i)

(iii)

(continued)

Non-derivative financial assets
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and in hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative  financial liabilities are
recognised initially on the trade date at which
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial liabilities: interest-bearing borrowings,
trade and other payables, and amounts due to
related parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(continued)

(iii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

(iv)

(continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
related parties

Trade and other payables and amounts due
to related parties are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Ordinary Share

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental cost directly attributable to the
issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B HAN

CBAAREHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

74

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (Note 2(i)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use,
and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral
to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction, and
is stated at cost less impairment losses (Note

2(i)(i).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction
during the construction period. Capitalisation
of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when all of the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
substantially complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B HAN

CBAAREHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measured reliably. The costs of
the day-to-day serving of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit and loss as
incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculation over the depreciable
amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated residual
value.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

° Property 20 years
o Machinery 10 years
o Motor vehicles 5-8 years
° Office equipment and others 5 years

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use.
Upon completion and commissioning for
operation, depreciation will be provided at the
appropriate rates specified above.

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual
value are reassessed at the reporting date.

2 FESITHE

(i)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

76

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is based on the weighted average cost principle,
and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of the production
overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial
asset measured at amortised cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying amount,
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are
tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely
are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro-rata basis.

The recoverable amount of assets or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the assets.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(M

(i)

Non-financial assets (continued)
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, annual bonuses and staff
welfare are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group.

Defined contribution retirement plans
Obligations for contributions to local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when they are due,
except to the extent that they are included in
the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTHE®

(iif) Share-based payment transactions

(i) B H AR {7 31132

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

80

Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding value added tax or
other sales taxes. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,
and there is no continuing management involvement
with the goods.

Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending on
the individual terms of contract of sales.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTHE®
Payments made under operating leases are KEMENRDIRERNZEE

recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expenses, over the term of the lease.

Finance income comprises interest income on
deposits in banks and net foreign exchange gain.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using
the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on
borrowings and net foreign currency losses.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the project when the
remaining development costs are immaterial. Hence
both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

82

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTBREXw=m

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance
sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for the temporary difference arising
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary difference
when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

84

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

0)

(if

)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (Note 2r(i)) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued two revised IFRSs, a number of
amendments to IFRSs and one new Interpretation that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
development is relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

o Improvements to IFRSs (2009)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The “Improvements to IFRSs (2009)” comprise a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of
IFRSs which the IASB has issued as an omnibus batch of
amendments.
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

4 Segment reporting 4 DEEFRE
The Group manages its business by a mixture of both AN B B E SR R & 5 2 4R
product lines and geography. In a manner consistent EREEEER -HERMASER
with the way in which information is reported internally SRAATEEE2RAEERD
to the Group’s most senior executive management for R REETH 2N RE 2 25|
the purposes of resource allocation and performance XN—  AKERBR TH =@
assessment, the Group has presented the following three RE DR

reportable segments:
o Hair-care products (mainland China and overseas) °

o Skin-care and other household and personal care °
products (mainland China and overseas)

o Herbal tea products (mainland China) °

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, other
than reporting inter-segment sales of herbal tea
products, assistance provided by one segment to
another, including sharing assets, is not measured.
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4  Segment reporting (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted (loss)/profit from operations”. To arrive at
adjusted (loss)/profit from operations, the Group’s
(loss)/profits are further adjusted for the items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such
as directors’ remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration expenses. The Group’s
senior executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment revenue
and segment (loss)/profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s senior
executive management regularly.

Information  regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 is
set out as below:

Skin-care and
other household and

BED BN ET AR
(R BEE(BR), 8] -
REZERERRKE (BR), &
M- AEE(BER),EFst
I 3E45 T B E B 2 JF YR B
EE—FHE  ME=H A
NE BB A RITHA
AEBERNTERGREREMR
ERDBEARD (&R,
BMZDEER - DEHEER
BEIYEEHRNAEES RN
TEEERS -

HE_Z-ZEFR_FTTHF
+—A=+—BLFE BH
MASERRATEEERMHE
ZEBRNPER D ERBEFTH 2
REBAREDH2ER SR
HHwmT -

Hair-care products personal care products Herbal tea products Total
EEREMRA
EEER EAREER RRER At
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-%% “TENF “E-FF “FTNF ZB-FF —ZTTNE “F-FF —TThE
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARKBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Reportable segment revenue 7] 3§ 45 2 ZB UK A
Revenue from external customers R B 9N AR EF 2
WA 1,328,079 1,669,025 77,519 86,976 69,757 — 1475355 1,756,001
Inter-segment revenue 7 EB 1 85 E WA 199 - - - 1,214 - 1,413 -
1,328,278 1,669,025 77,519 86,976 70,971 — 1,476,768 1,756,001
Reportable segment G &0
(loss)/profit (&8/),/&F
Adjusted (loss)/profit AR
from operations (E518) /% F (39,888) 473,847 (5,645) 8,498 (65,084) - (110617) 482,345
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 2 EBERE (m)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) AIEES B AR KR

88

revenue and results

HiE

Revenue A
2010 2009
—E-ZfF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Reportable segment revenue A ¥R & o 2B U A 1,476,768 1,756,001
Elimination of S o BEBKA
inter-segment revenue (1,413) —
Consolidated turnover et E XS 1,475,355 1,756,001
Results 4
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A k25 5 B (E518 ), % 7| (110,617) 482,345
Elimination of HIHE o HBERF
inter-segment profits (130) —
Other revenue H it Ui 7 1,810 —
Other net losses Hib i858 (1,399) (294)
Unallocated head office and Ro# 7 1@aie
corporate expenses NEIFTERE X (21,237) (29,799)
Finance income B 75 M A 13,043 2,322
Finance costs % E A (15,601) 4,771)
Consolidated (loss)/profit AOFBRFLAT(E18),
before taxation i A (134,131) 449,803

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F BIER (&£ E) =K AR A 7
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4  Segment reporting (continued)

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets
and non-current portion of prepaid advertising fee
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, and the location of the operation to
which they are allocated, in the case of the non-

current portion of prepaid advertising fee.

okr

4 DEPERE (#)

TERFJOAEERAINDF
P ey A K (i AN = B ) B E B
ENF—FREE D AN
EEEREENERDE
EDRRER - FPHME
i I RERERBIRINE
MmO EETE - HEMNIERD
BEMMEBEMEREEEER
STEME(MBYE  BE
BB EREXBRAENME
(W@ E—F AR I DA
NESER)MEE -

Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
kB SN ED Eihal-o!
BEPBKA ERBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-2F _TTNF ZB-TF _FTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AR®TT ARE®TT AR¥ETT
PRC (place of domicile) A (S B Eib) 1,413,695 1,677,225 58,957 40,470
Hong Kong BB 41,146 49,197 3.616 4,941
Singapore 30 13,325 17,872 - —
Malaysia BRE R 4,461 5,221 — —
Myanmar ke 1,119 320 - —
Brunei DS 706 — - -
The United o] Bt 2
Arab Emirates 903 -

Thailand S - 6,166 - —
61,660 78,776 3.616 4,941
1,475,355 1,756,001 62,573 45,411
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5 Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of the household and personal care products
including hair-care and skin-care products. The Group
is also engaged in the sales of herbal tea products since
June 2010.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers. Turnover excludes value added taxes and
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts. The amount of each significant category of

e Sz
EER

AEBETZREHERFEERRE
BAREER  BREELRESE
meAEBEBR _ZT-—ZTFRARL
REFEERRERER -

EXRBEATFHENERNHEE
BE 2XBTEEEETRMEM
HEN XM EMEEN -
ERAFELEBPHEINSTEE

revenue recognised in turnover during the years is as ABABRBSEAT :
follows:
For the year ended 31 December
HEt+-_RA=+—HIt&EE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBETF T
Hair-care products EEER 1,328,079 1,669,025
Skin-care and other household and B REMEKABEA
personal care products I E D 77,519 86,976
Herbal tea products B BRI E S 69,757 —
1,475,355 1,756,001

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenues.

AEEEFPEMRDA - WHEEE—
BEPHNRZHAEEEEETE10%
A L e
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6

(Loss)/profit before taxation

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

(a) Finance income and costs

6 KRAAEHA(EE) &R

BRATSBAT(BER), aFE MR,
GtA)TEIER :

(a) MBEBAREHR

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—z-=5 EE LI
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Finance income B 75 W A
Interest income on bank deposits SRITFERFEMA (13043 (2,322)
Finance costs Bi5eE A
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERF B 5,115 2,231
Bank charges on bank borrowings $8 17 & 3k F #& & 2,016 -
Net foreign exchange losses b 18K 58 8,470 2,540
~Suptotel AR 15601 47t
Net finance costs B 7% & R 2,558 2,449
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6 (Loss)/profit before taxation (continued) 6
(4

%ﬁﬁﬁ%

(E518), & A

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—AILEE

2010 2009
S ST
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEF T
Salaries, wages and other e IERHEMEF
benefits 129,700 84,027
Equity-settled share-based AREZEENRN I
payment expenses (Note 20(c)) & A (Ff 5£20(c)) 8,413 6,435
Contributions to defined FLE M FUR IR T S 3K
contribution retirement plan 5,599 4,627
143,712 95,089
Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (Note BETXRABEEEMNE (&
8(a). 8(@) °
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations BEFEBEBAERA KRR
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiary participates in a B - A BB B A A 22 B E R

defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”) organised by the local authority
whereby the PRC subsidiary is required to make
contributions to the Scheme based on certain
percentages of the eligible employee’s salaries.
The local government authority is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group also maintains a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s and
employee’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are based on the relevant income of the relevant
employee and in accordance with the requirements
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and related regulations.

92  BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %8 F B &S (&£ &) = X B R 2

JiF 85 P % 32 # SRE BRI AR
a8 ([&%5T811) - Btk - &
BB AR ARS ERER S
EHWE T ADLRAZETBIEL
R - T BB AERR
KEESXNZEBERAKE -

KEIJ‘FWFEE‘E? BE%E
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6 (Loss)/profit before taxation (continued)

The Group has no other obligations for payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contribution described

6 KRAAEHA(EE) &R

(%)

Br Bt RSN - R A E
fi 73 18 B AR IK R EL A IR KR A
MERNEE -

above.
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-_A=+—HLFE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AREEFTT
Depreciation* e 8,252 6,721
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S5 B B & 1,250 4,378
Cost of inventories* 58 KA 564,017 590,355
Impairment loss for bad and RIZRERBEERE
doubtful debts (Note 15(b)) (P 5£15(b)) 149 1,549
. Cost of inventories includes RMB40,260,000 (2009: - FERABRERIEIKAR

RMB31,326,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation, which
amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 6(b) for each of these
types of expenses.

WEEHENREGEARS
40,260,000TC (ZZEE L4 : AR
#31,326,0007T) * BRAZKEIE
&t A 32k i w6 (o) fE 5 3 55 #) &
FEHTEE -

Annual Report 2010 —ZE —Z 4 F3 93



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt #% 3k = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

7 Income tax (credit)/expense 7 FEBGEN) BX
For the year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
2010 2009
—z-%% —zThE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
Current tax BYHA Bt 18
— PRC income tax — HEREH
Provision for the year FREE 9,660 63,731
Over-provision in respect UAFEZFHRM
of prior years HERE (2,476) -
7,184 63,731
Current tax B B B 18
— Hong Kong income tax —BEBNEH
Provision for the year FREAE 3,745 1,866
Deferred tax EERIE
— PRC income tax — HERER
Origination of temporary TR EBENESE
differences (27,089) 20,062
Income tax (credit)/expense FiEH (EHM) BxX (16,160) 85,659
()  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the () BEFREHESMEBRX
Cayman lIslands and the BVI, the Group is HERNABRRG - RE
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman EHAMMNFS SRR
Islands and the BVI. B KBS M ER G
oo
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7

Income tax (credit)/expense (continued)

(il

i)

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Bawang
Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the Group,
is subject to a unified income tax rate of 25%
with effect from 1 January 2008.

In accordance with the Implementation Rules
and grandfathering arrangements of the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
Law”) which started to take effect on 1 January
2008, Bawang Guangzhou continued to be
eligible for the “two-year exemption and three-
year 50% reduction” tax holiday from 2006 to
2010.

Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Ltd. (“Bawang
Beverage”), a PRC subsidiary of the Group,
was newly established in Guangzhou in 2010.
The applicable income tax rate of Bawang
Beverage is 25%.

7

P& %

(i

(i)

(| $0), B (@)

A=2EN\F—A—A
1 AR B EH B A
ABE(EMERAR
(1'% B MM 1) 8 A 95 —
B FF 15 T B 9 25% BB ©

RE-_STTNF—A—
B 788 A R Bl %
SBR[ EAEHR
EDHMERFE RBE
HiZeBE - BEEMD A4
BR_ZETAFE_T—
ZEHHEZAIME =R
FINBMBEEE -

AEES— M EHEA
ABT(RE)RHAR
ARTBETRBDR =
T-FEERMRKT - B
F R 2B
525% -

Annual Report 2010 —ZE —ZFF8; 95



Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

7

96

Income tax (credit)/expense (continued)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F BIER (&£ E) =K AR A 7

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules of
the CIT Law, overseas investors to foreign
investment companies (“FIE”) shall be liable for
withholding income tax at 10% on the dividend
derived from the profits of PRC subsidiaries
with effect from 1 January 2008, unless the
tax rate is reduced by treaty. Pursuant to the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangements,
the investor established in Hong Kong which
is the beneficiary owner holding not less
than 25% of the equity interests of its PRC
subsidiaries can enjoy a reduced withholding
tax rate of 5% on the dividend received from
its PRC subsidiaries. The Group did not make
provision of withholding income tax for the
year ended 31 December 2010 since the
PRC subsidiaries, both Bawang Guangzhou
and Bawang Beverage, incurred losses in the
current year.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was
made by Hong Kong Bawang International
Trading Limited (“Bawang Trading”) and
was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year (2009: 16.5%).

7

Fr &%

(iv)

(#40), B 3 (40)

BRI EFRETAERIE
B - BZFTFENF—H—
HiE -+ BRIERE RAV R KRR
X HNEIRE D E(TH
BELEDNBEIINEESE
AR R B B8 A A
FIE AR BB 10% T80T
158 o ARIR A Hh B H S
REEHMETH  RNEE
KB EENREEF
B B B 2 A K F 25% 4
wAAIEMEA - BIA
ZXREFENBARN
IR BR) TR TE R B &
5% o B E K E A F
(BREBIEMREIR
BB EEEE  ALR
EEREE2010F12 A
S1THIEFEW R AR
TEHMFSH -

BEBENEGHEBEEDEE
FIHBEEZERAQA
(BXTEZREFA
fth 51 FE SR B 0% A1 19 16.5%
(ZZEZTNF :16.5%) 5"
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(B =B HAN

7

CBAAREHR)

Income tax (credit)/expense (continued)

7 FREBOGEM) X

For the year ended 31 December

BE+TZA=1+—RILFE

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBF T

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETE R AT (E518), % F (134,131) 449,803
Income tax on (loss)/profit RERBRPREEBLD

before tax, calculated BE EE R TR

at the rates applicable (B1B),/ BB/

to the PRC operations (BP25%)

(i.e. 25%) (33,533) 112,451
Effect of withholding income tax ~ FBHFTE RN &

(Note 7(a)(iv)) (P #E7(@)(iv) - 21,193
Effect of tax rate differential (i) TR B 8 52 i) 22,167 10,550
Effect on deemed e %E 7% JE ER B I A B

taxable income (i) 2 (1i) 984 1,377
Effect of non-deductible T —J HBAIHTE

expenses 6,358 2,688
Effect of tax concessions (iii) T T8 B 2B ) 82 2 (9,660) (62,600)
Bonus deduction of MEREERD

R&D expenses for 2009 (iv) INETHBR(v) (2,689) —
Under provision in prior year NRIFEE LR IREE 213 —
Income tax (credit)/expense  FiEH (EH), FxX (16,160) 85,659

(M

The effect of tax

rate differential

mainly

represented the effect of the difference in tax
rates among the Company and its subsidiaries
and the tax effect arising from difference
between the tax rate of 25% being applied in
the computation of expected income tax and
the rate for recognising the deferred tax.

() TRARENFEFERRE
AR REHBA ﬂZFﬁ
ERTERENTZE -

Mt EEHmE fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
FA 8925% 75t 2R B2 i JR R 1T
HMIEEERTE AT E
TRFEENTE -
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7

98

Income tax (credit)/expense (continued)

(i)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F BIER (&£ E) =K AR A 7

Effect on deemed taxable income represents
deemed sales income in respect of
promotional goods provided to customers
at nil consideration, which is calculated in
accordance with the CIT law of the PRC,
applicable from 1 January 2008.

Effect of tax concessions represents the
difference between standard income tax rate
and preferential income tax rate enjoyed by the
Group as set out in Note 7(a)(ii).

According to Tax Notice on Provisional
Administrative Measures governing Pre-CIT
Deduction of R&D Expenses (Guoshuifa [2008]
No.116) issued by the State Administration
of Taxation, effective from 1 January 2008,
R&D expenses, which are not capitalised,
are qualified for bonus deduction for income
tax purpose, i.e. an additional 50% of such
expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses. The approval of the 50% additional
deduction of R&D expenses for the year ended
31 December 2009 was obtained in 2010.

7

Fr &%

(i

(i)

(iv)

(#40), B 3 (40)

RRBERRBANTE
BBEREEREPIRMtHE
EEmAKRABEER
A BREF B BOEM
AECBZETENE—A
—BREEM -

MIBEBNZERRITE
PSR R BRI 57 (a)
(WA REZEES
PRSI RBTAER °

AR B B 5K B 75 42 3 AR 4 Y
R 20084F1 A1 H #£ 4%
WCEERRFAZERN
AT 0 Bk B3R 3R (B Y
ZE[2008]F 11658 ) © K&
MEMRFEFRBE BRI
FTE RSB R IT A
kR - BIR7Z & A50%aT
H 58RI R YNA B AT
TR o A& B R 2010
F 15N & 22009 F
12A31BILEFEMHAE
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8 Directors’ remuneration 8 EEM=E
(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration of the (a) T*LFEFTMEFHWMT :
Company are set out below:
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total (note(i)) 2010 total
3
BER RUKEA B 1R % AT —2-%2F%
ne ENRE A TR Nt (£ () fact

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TRE ARBTRn ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR AR®Tn ARET#

Chairman IR

Mr. GHEN Qiyuan BEUR % & - - - - - - -
Executive directors HTES

Ms. WAN Yuhua BRELL - - - - - - -
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi W& - 1,039 - 10 1,049 1,389 2,438
Mr. WONG Sin Yung EEREE - 1,731 - 10 1,741 1,511 3,252

Non-executive director  F#TEZS

Ms. GUO Jing FeLt 260 = = = 260 - 260
Independent non- B

executive directors FHTES
Mr. NGAI Wai Fung Bakss 346 = = = 346 - 346
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi BB L 260 - - - 260 - 260
Mr. LI Bida TpELE 260 - - - 260 - 260
Total @t 1,126 2,770 - 20 3,916 2,900 6,816
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8 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 EEMEuwm
(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration of the (a) TLFEFTMEFHMT :
Company are set out below: (continued) (&)
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement Share-based
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme payments
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total (notef()) 2009 total
2EHR BRG] Rzt Z—BEAF
ne ENFE bz SRR Uiy (FitzE() @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETT AR¥TL ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTL AREBTR

Chairman I
Mr. GHEN Qiyuan BEUR L& - - - - - - -
Executive directors YTES
Ms. WAN Yuhua BXELT - - - - - - -
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi WNEEE - 595 - 5 600 1,029 1,629
Mr. WONG Sin Yung EERGE - 1,762 - 5 1,767 1,320 3,087
Non-executive director FHTEZE
Ms. GUO Jing P&ETL 132 - - - 132 - 132
Independent non- By
executive directors FHTES
Mr. NGAI Wai Fung REEEE 308 - - - 308 - 308
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi B S A 132 - - - 132 - 132
Mr. LI Bida TRERE 132 - - - 132 - 132
Total @it 704 2,357 - 10 3,071 2,349 5,420
Note: et -
(i) These represent the estimated value of share options granted (i) Z 5 BIBB AN A 7 IR 8%

to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in Note 2(j)(iii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note 20.
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8 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 EEMEuwm
(b) An analysis of directors’ remuneration (b) REEHERTFTHEEZ
by the number of directors and JIMESEFMSIRAOT :

remuneration range is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENEF

Number of Number of

directors directors

EEHH EEHE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 T 6 6

HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 22,000,000 T — 1

HK$2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 % 3,000,000/% 7T 1 —

HK$3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3,000,001 % 3,500,000/% 7T — 1

HK$3,500,001 to 4,000,000 3,500,001 & 4,000,000/ JT 1 —

8 8

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 EmeFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, SAimmBFMALH =M (ZFF
three (2009: three) are directors, whose emoluments are NE:ZU)AES  FEFTHR
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments s E - AN G HFMALD
in respect of the five individuals with highest emoluments FEEm T

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREETTT

Salaries and other emoluments e REME M 3,271 2,798

Share-based payments f& 5 3 A+ 4,486 3,511
Contribution to defined FE R FOR IR ET B4 5K

contribution retirement plans 46 50

7,803 6,359
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9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 EEHMALw

(continued)

An analysis of the emoluments of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments is with the following bands:

- H

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

7 & = ¥ B A £ &9 %5 Bl 0 47 40

2010 2009
—s-%F —EEhF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 2 1,500,0007% 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 £ 2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 £ 3,000,000/ JT 1 —
HK$3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3,000,001 23,500,000 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to 4,000,000 3,500,001 24,000,000 7T 1 —
5 5
10 (Loss)/profit attributable to equity 10 AR AERFE AEBGER
shareholders of the Company A (EBE)
The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity RAARERFAEARGEEE RN E
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of REFARRAMBHREANAR
RMB16,948,000 (2009 loss: RMB30,630,000) which 16,948,000 T M 1B (Z BT NF
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the &5 18« AR #30,630,0007T) °
Company.
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10 (Loss)/profit attributable to equity 10 XA RERIFE AEGR
shareholders of the Company (continued) (i ) (%)
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s Lt HE Eﬁi$ NaElFEREF (B
profit for the year: B)ZHEER
2010 2009
= —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTF T
Amount of consolidated loss attributable = & AR RQ & B R K F
to equity shareholders dealt with WEREA A
in the Company’s financial statements JEEEE S5 (16,948) (30,630)
Final dividends from subsidiaries Bt B A &) £ — & B B
attributable to the profits of the FEEANBEMEIR
previous financial year, approved and RHRE RAFR
paid during the year BRI R AT 329,409 284,490
Company’s profit for the year A BVF A F
(Note 22(a)) (Kt 5E22(a)) 312,461 253,860

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in Note 22(b).
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(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

11 (Loss)/earnings per share 11 SR (E18)BF
The calculation of basic loss per share is based BREXRSEDIRETFALRRD
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity AT ERESEAEAEMGE
shareholders of the Company of RMB117,971,000 BAR®E117,971,000t (==
(2009 profit: RMB364,144,000) and the weighted TNEF + AR ¥ 364,144,000
average of 2,906,389,810 ordinary shares (2009: o) REBETERRME T
2,497,753,425 ordinary shares) in issue during the ¥ 812,906,389,810 (=T &
year, calculated as follows: JL&F :2,497,753,425 % T &

BROFTHEMT -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: I AR N 15 &

At 31 December

®n+=ZA=+—8H
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ETNF
Issued ordinary shares R—A—HB#77T
at 1 January TR 2,905,000,000 1
Effect of repurchase EEIRAE T AR
of existing ordinary shares 2 = Q)
Effect of increase 1800 38 Ak &9
in ordinary shares wa - 10,000
Effect of capitalisation issue BERbETHRE - 2,099,990,000
Effect of shares issued BRAARBERET
upon initial public offering g op-2<1 = 397,758,425
Effect of share option exercised = #77 # I% 15 37 B8 1%
(Note 22(c)(i)) ) 52 & (Mt 5E22(c)(i) 1,389,810 —
Weighted average number of R+ - A=+—H
ordinary shares at i AR A hn A
31 December Fig 2,906,389,810 2,497,753,425
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11 (Loss)/earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted loss per share
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB117,971,000
(2009 profit: RMB364,144,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares (diluted) of
2,914,699,696 shares (2009: 2,500,976,782).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(diluted) is calculated as:

11 ER(EER),BFmEm)

BREEEBEDHRERNAR L
ARESFAEAEBGEERA
R #117,971,000 (ZZE ZF A,
F: AR ¥364,144,0007T) °
RE@mRmEFEIE8(E#E)
2,914,699,696 fx st E(=Z T =
A ¢ 2,500,976,782/% ) °

LB INEF (B #E) &
/(1N

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—F-FF —TTAF
+t=A=+-H” +t=—A=+—8H
Weighted average number I3 Ak hN #E T 8
of ordinary shares 2,906,389,810 2,497,753,425
Effect of deemed issue RNA R ERET &
of shares under the WRBEEITRG
Company’s share Eop-2 -1
option scheme 8,309,886 3,223,357
Weighted average number RZE—FF
of ordinary shares (diluted) +=-—A=+—8H
at 31 December Lm Ak e T
(B#5%) 2,914,699,696 2,500,976,782
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12 Property, plant and equipment

12 1% - BER&E

Office
Motor  equipment Construction
Buildings  Machinery vehicles and others in progress Total
WOAERE
EE Ba BHIA REAM HEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT AEBTR ARETT AR%TT ARET:
Cost: B
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF-A—A - 25,789 11,204 5,465 - 42,458
Additions NE - 6,526 1,043 6,624 1,763 15,956
Disposals HE - (1,608) - (65) - (1,679)
At 31 December 2009 and RZZETNE
1 January 2010 +-ZA=+t-HEK
—E-ZTF-A-A - 30,707 12,247 12,024 1,763 56,741
Additions NE 5,494 12,018 1,725 9,091 803 29,131
Disposals HE - - 9) (155) - (158)
Transfer from construction ERBERRIR
in progress - - - 1,573 (1,573) -
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZF
.. TZAET-R 0 b4 o a7 13969 2258 9% ! 8,714
Accumulated depreciation: R E :
At 1 January 2009 RZZENF-A—H - (6,613) 2,761) (1,574) - (10,948)
Charge for the year FERFHE - (3,281) (2,096) (1,344) - 6,721)
Written back on disposals HER &R - 235 - 23 - 258
At 31 December 2009 and RZFZNE
1 January 2010 +ZA=+-HR
—2-TF—-f—H - (9,659) (4,857) (2,895) - (17,411)
Charge for the year FRER (84) (3,114) (2,316) (2,738) - (8,252)
Written back on disposals HERED - - 2 83 - 85
At 31 December 2010 RZE-T4F
... TERET-R 6 (2rrs) o 6550 - 25,578)
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2009 RZFZNE
+-A=t+-8H - 21,048 7,390 9,129 1,763 39,330
At 31 December 2010 RZE-%%
+-A=1+-H 5410 29,952 6,798 16,983 993 60,136

AEBHBERENEHDE  BEREKES
(VAL RE

All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group
are located in the PRC.
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13 Investments in subsidiaries 13 RINBRARANKRE
The Company
PIN/NES|
At 31 December
W+—A=+—8
2010 2009
S EEEIX
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREET T
Unlisted shares, at cost (US$2) FELETRRG

B ARFE (23 7T) - -
Less: impairment loss Ao OREBK = -
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13 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 13 RMMBARMNEE @
At the date of this report, the Company has direct or RAZHRAH AR EEHHEE
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries. The class BEATHBARNER - HAR
of shares held is ordinary. The particulars of these mEER AEBEIR - ZEWNB A A
subsidiaries are set out below: IE&EF T
Proportion of ownership interest
EERAES
Group’s

Place of Particulars of effective Held by

incorporation issued and interest Held by a subsidiary

Name of company and operation paid up capital A%E the Company MK B  Principal activities

DNAER RIREE Y BRIRAZER EREE ARARF AARE ETEEH

Forever Giants Limited British Virgin Island USS1 100% 100% —  Marketing and
(“Forever Giants”) ("BVI") = promotion of

RBRARE household and
personal care
products

BEREEZAR
EAEEER

Maxford Investments Development Ltd.  BVI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(‘Maxford Investments”) REEGHBE no par value RBER

with US$1

paid up

as consideration
EXMET
ERREN
TRERERD

Lucky Rich Investments Limited BVI 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(‘Lucky Rich”) REEABE no par value BB R

with US$10,000

paid up

as consideration

B %110,000% T
ERREN
10,0000 & & & 7

Bawang International Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited Fif 15T BBk
(‘Bawang Investments”)

BIERREFRAT
((BEIRE]

Bawang International Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
Holding (HK) Limited B 157 trading of
(‘Bawang Hong Kong’) household and

BIEREMAR(EH)ERLT personal care
(EE) products

HERAR
BAZEER
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CBAAREHR)

13 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

13 RENB A RANKRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

EERAES
Group's
Place of Particulars of effective Held by
incorporation issued and interest Held by a subsidiary
Name of company and operation paid up capital KA£8E the Company MK B  Principal activities
DNEAER RUIREEHY BRTRAZER EREE AOARA AARE ETEEH
Hong Kong Bawang International Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Trading of
Trading Limited Fi 157 household and
(‘Bawang Trading”) personal care
ERBIERESERLA products
ES-E1) HERAR
BAZEEER
Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. the PRC US$29,500,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
(‘Bawang Guangzhou’) hE 29,500,000% & trading of
BI(EM)ERAA(TBIRN) nousehold and
personal care
products
RERHERAR
BAAEEER
Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Ltd. the PRC HK$180,000,000 100% - 100%  Trading of
(‘Bawang Beverage”) hE 180,000,003 7. herbal tea
BIHR)AHAERAT products
(TBIHRH]) HERRER
. 4=
Inventories 14 78
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet (a) REHANEFEREHE :
comprise:
The Group
&
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—8
2010 2009
—F-FF —ETENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Raw materials R 41 ket 12,552 8,024
Work in progress pasg- T 6,229 7,170
Finished goods RIEY T 40,987 27,523
Packing materials BEEYE 19,527 13,736
Others EHAh 4,921 3,931
84,216 60,384
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14 Inventories (continued) 14 FE )

(b) The analysis of the amount of b) EFFARBERIEER
inventories recognised as an expense MERKSFIHWT :
and included in profit or loss is as
follows:

The Group
PN S
At 31 December

BR+=ZA=+—8H
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T

Carrying amount of EEFERAEE

inventories sold 553,206 590,355
Write down of inventories GFEKEER 10,811 —
564,017 590,355
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15 Trade and other receivables 15 ES R HAMEWRFKIE
The Group The Company
REHE ViN/NE]

At 31 December At 31 December

w+=—A=+—8H R+ZA=+—H
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-=F —ZTTNF ZE-TF —ITTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT ARBTIT ARMTE ARETE

Trade debtors and B S EWHER
bills receivable e W E & 314,481 376,815 - —
Less: allowance for o REREBE
doubtful debts (MF3E15(0))
(Note 15(0)) (1,792) (1,650) — —
312,689 375,165 - —
Prepayment for purchase B B J& &k} 78 1+
of raw materials RIE 2,656 2,017 = —
Prepayment for purchase B% B & T & &
of fixed assets BT 1A 18,478 2,803 - -
Prepaid advertising fee ENEEER 87,021 150,622 - —
Amounts due from JiE U Y B A )
subsidiaries (Note 15(dl)) I8 (Ff 7 15(d)) - — 1,471,146 416,050
Other receivables H th & UL K1 19,216 3,402 251 1
440,060 534,009 1,471,397 416,051
The credit terms granted by the Group to customers AEBE—RETFTEFI0E180HE
generally range from 30 days to 180 days. The Group’s RE - REBKEEBRSENHE
credit policy is set out in Note 23(c). Generally, all of the 23(c)c —MiME - MEBS KEM
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered JEWRIBTE AR —F A E o

within one year.
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B 5 K H ftt & W F IR (@)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in trade and other receivables of the REBEZREMEBEWRIES
Group are trade debtors of the Group and bills BAEENE S EWKRIERE
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with WEE (EHNBRRERE) - R
the following ageing analysis by due date as of the HEB B REMEKFIE

balance sheet date: HEERE DT EEE T -

The Group
PANES
At 31 December
®n+=—A=+—8©
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREETFTT
Current B &f 278,427 342,332
Less than 3 months past due @ Hf D> R 31E A 29,798 31,348
More than 3 months but less than B 1% 31 A B
6 months past due L rA6{E A 5,130 1,911
More than 6 months but less than B 1 % R efE A B
12 months past due D124 A 553 793
More than 12 months past due B H3 % 1218 A 573 431
314,481 376,815
Less: impairment loss o REEREEE
for doubtful debts (1,792) (1,650)
312,689 375,165
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable of the Group are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly (see Note 2(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

£ I8 ()

B 5 KR H B FIE (#)

REEE 5 RURIA KRR
ERORMERKR ARKES -
B IR RAN K B B % W B % 5108

By =B T CBIEmEERRE
EHEESERGFIERERSE
& (R BERE20)3) ©

REEE(Z2RBERNEXKX)

during the year, including mainly the specific losses, RERNNEEMT -
is as follows:
The Group
PiNE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,650 101
Impairment loss recognised ERRREERE 149 1,549
Uncollectible amounts written off 4 &4 /1~ ] Uy [@ & %8 (7) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,792 1,650

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s trade debtors
and bills receivable of RMB985,000 (2009:
RMB1,650,000) were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that full amount of these
receivables cannot be recovered. Consequently full
provisions for these doubtful debts were recognised.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

B A% lﬁ/\EﬁZQBaooo
T(ZZEENF : AR
1,650,0007T) B & 5 & W 3K I8

MEWEEHERREALE
B o 5% % IR R B A R IR
ARFBAVBRE#EREEE
1 AT AE 2 S H B R
B AEEEHZER
RIEZERE  -ANEBWER
ZEEBRFETWERR -
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15 ES R EMEWRIE®)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

I 4 {8 5l S B B AR th 3R
B B B 5 MR IR B e R

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable that are neither individually nor collectively

considered to be impaired are as follows: BHRERSITWOT
The Group
K&
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—8
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREETF T
Neither past due nor impaired W M@MSORE 277710 341,370
Less than 3 months past due w0 Hf D> R 31E A 29,721 31,260
More than 3 months but less than A R3E AR
6 months past due L HA6{E A 5,117 1,906
More than 6 months but less than wmAEZ Re@ AR
12 months past due L1218 A 141 598
More than 12 months but less than w2 M 12{8 A B
24 months past due L ri24(E A - 31
e 970 33,795
312,689 375,165

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

I 45 780 H3 o Ot 18 #Y U SR 0 BB
RRBRZNEP @ REIDH
I 48 78 HR A5 SR RS 8%

781 518 I 4 1 R (B A B IR
HEETEYEFPAR %%
EFEAEENRHLER
oo MRNRZEEPERERE
EVEBLEBANE BZTF
RBARDER SR AZ RN E
REAEER  BEEEREE
TR SERERERERS - &
SEY B FERITH EM
H#fm e
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

These amounts due from subsidiaries of the
Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
are expected to be repaid within the next twelve
months.

16 Pledged deposits

The balance as at 31 December 2010 represented
the bank deposits of RMB220,000,000 pledged by
Bawang Guangzhou in favour of China Merchants Bank
Guangzhou Branch (“CMB Guangzhou Branch”), in
respect of the bills payable accepted by CMB Guangzhou
Branch. Payment of the bill will be due on 22 June 2011.

The pledged deposits amounting to HK$184,000,000
(equivalent to RMB162,012,000) as at 31 December
2009 were pledged by the Company in favour of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., in respect of the loan granted
by it to Bawang Trading in 2009. It was released upon the
repayment of the related loan on 18 June 2010.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

15 ES R EMEWRIE @)

X B EY FE WP B X Bl 5RO0R
RERE - 2B MEHERK
T-EAREERE -

16 EH 7K

R-BE—ZFTFE+-_A=+—80w&
HREBTEMUABHBITEMNDIT
(HBEBETEMNDTT)ABIHA
MZDITERENEERAMIKHANIRT
FRA R #220,000,0007T ° ZZE
BR-_ZE——F A -+ _HIH
XAt e

R-ZZBEZEANF+_A=+—HBHH
184,000,0008 Tt F 3k (FE & R
AR #162,012,0007T) & A A 7 JA
BREBRITROERARAZEA
REBER-_ZTALFRNHELIES
RHAERmE RO KIE - ZER
R-E—ZTFXA+N\BEEERH
BB B -

17 RERBEFEY

The Group The Company
REE PANYNES

At 31 December At 31 December

W+ZA=+—H R+ZA=+—8H
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F5 —ZTThEFE ZZT-TF ZTEITNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETRT AR®TT ARBTRT AR%Tx

Deposits with banks within B 77 7 B #2 = & A

three months to M 2 5 89
maturity when placed RITEHFER 614,976 264,150 - —
Deposits with banks within & 17 7 B # /< & A
six months to M 2 5 89
maturity when placed RITEHFER 60,000 — - —
Cash at bank and in hand $R{T4& 8 &E S 511,568 1,478,373 100,104 1,031,999
1,186,544 1,742,523 100,104 1,031,999
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17 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of RMB1,052,380,000 (31 December 2009:
RMB416,992,000) are dominated in RMB. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction
imposed by the PRC government.

18 Trade and other payables

17 BeRB2EEY @)

RZZE—ZEF+A=+—H &K
E£E A AR ¥1,052,380,0007T (=
EENEFE+_A=+—H: AR
416,992,000 ) MR & KRS EE
MAARKE  AREIIEE AR
HBNER  BESEDRBEN
B BT E MR SNE B B AT AR
R o

18 E 5 R H B 5IE

The Group The Company
PiINCSS PN
At 31 December At 31 December
R+=—A=+—H R+=—A=+—H
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF5 Z—ZZTTNF Z—E—ZF ZITTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR%®Tnx ARBTR ARETr
Trade payables B S EMNFRE 58,673 115,330 — —
Receipts in advance 18 W FRIE 57,460 30,790 — —
Promotion fee payable EREEEA 33,092 49,812 — —
Accrued payroll ERITE 18,525 11,977 255 438
Amounts due to FE 1 Bt B A R BIR
subsidiaries - — - 149
Derivative financial ESRIA
instruments 3,757 — - —
Other payables and Hib BT HRIE R
accruals JEEHE 57,286 85,930 100 7,549
228,793 293,839 355 8,136

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 30

days to 90 days.

AHEEETHEAMRN TR E
90H °
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18 Trade and other payables (continued) 18 ESZRHEME[NARIE®)
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors EoRHEMENFIBBREE S EN
with the following ageing analysis of the balance sheet FIE REEARINBBESNHER
date: BRunR

The Group
&
At 31 December
R+—-_A=+—8H
2010 2009
—E-=ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Due within 1 month or on demand 118 A B H gl iz 38 AN
BE 40,390 84,662
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11 A & E31& A & 2| & 18,283 30,668
58,673 115,330
19 Bank loans and overdrafts 19 RITERREX
The Group
&
At 31 December
R+—-—A=+—8H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Secured bank loan within 1 year 1F NI H 8
BEBRITER 209,787 158,490

The balance as at 31 December 2010 mainly represented
a short-term loan provided by China Merchants Bank
Hong Kong Branch to Bawang Hong Kong at an interest
rate of 3.3% per annum. The loan will be due on 22 June

2011.

RZZE—ZHEF+_A=+—HHE
BREBRRBARITEBDITRAR
A B AR BT EBRENFR
KRI3NHEHER - LERHR
—T R AZ-t+Z=BEH-
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19

20

Bank loans and overdrafts (continued)

The balances as at 31 December 2009 mainly
represented a loan of HK$180 million granted by China
Merchants Bank to Bawang Trading on 18 June 2009, at
an interest rate of 3-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus a margin of 1.5%, with a one-year loan period.
The loan was fully repaid on 18 June 2010. The related
pledge of bank deposit of HK$184 million, which was
provided by the Company, was released on the same
day.

Bawang Guangzhou obtained a standby short-term bank
facility of RMB100 million from Bank of China on 24 April
2009, which was reserved for general capital purpose.
The bank facility expired on 24 April 2010 and there has
been no draw-down from this bank facility during the
period.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Board of Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on 10 December 2008. On 8 June
2009, the Company conditionally granted certain Pre-
IPO share options to the directors, senior management
and employees under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The exercise of these share options would entitle two of
the Company’s directors to subscribe for an aggregate
of 4,200,000 shares of the Company, and forty of
senior management and employees for an aggregate
of 10,332,000 shares. According to the grant letters
signed by the Company and the beneficial individuals,
the exercise price of each share under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is either at par value of HK$0.1 (four
people under this tranche including two directors), or at
HK$1.19, representing a 50% discount to the offer price
of HK$2.38 under the global offering (thirty eight people
under this tranche). Each option granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting period of one
to five years, commencing from the listing date and the
options are exercisable until 8 June 2019.

19

20

BRITEREESZ @)

RZEZNF+ZA=+T—HBHK
EHREBAEBBITRZEZTNF
ANATNEMBEITESRHED
180,000,000 ;L B X © | B & =
&l A& A RITEZEHFE IN1.5%E
¥ BXHA—F -%EZEEXE
RZE—ZFTFAT+ N NBZ2HE
B -HARRRENHEEERER
184,000,000 Tt E R & B fEF ©

BTEMNR-_ZEZTNFNA=-TM
HE{S AR RRITIRENEHER
R 1715 B8 E A K % 100,000,000
T TEBRE—REEES - %
ERTEEER=ZZE—ZFNHEA
Z+HEAER - REA &R
BHIRTTEERE °

UREREENRODZAFR
Z
EEeRN_TTNhF+=A+HE#
HEERXARAEERBRETS -1
—ETAFXNANB AR AHIE
i RIEE R AFEE A ERERT
FRESE SAEEERKERES
BFETERARZEAERE -
TELEBERER TARAMEBE
=R A 4,200,000 8 A A 7%
D A RABESRERENEESR
B8 & 10,332,000 0% A8 2 &) % 17 #
R - REARAFBASEZE AR
RN TRYG  BXAAFABEENE
BREFEBETHERRNDITERE
HREBEBEOIBITUATEIY - H
REEMBES) K198 T - B
REREFEETREE2BE TR
50% (38 ATEEF) - BRIBFEH R AF
BEFBREFSRENTHER
BHTHESFH AR LETH BB
—FERF  -FAEBRENER=
TE—NFXANBRTE -

B
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 UHEREENRO AR
(continued) 2 (1)
Contractual
Number of life
instruments Vesting conditions of options
BREHA TRERE BRESOH

Options granted RTEENBRE
to directors:

—on8June2009 ——EZTAFXANA 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EThELAZARHE 106
—on8June2009 ——EZAFSANA 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TThELA=AE 10%
—on8June2009 —Z—EZEAFASANA 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TTHELAZAREHIE 10%
—on8June2009 —Z—ETAFNANA 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ETNELAZRE4E 10%F
— on 8 June 2009 —ZZZAFASANA 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TTAFLAZAREEE 105
Options granted ETEENBEARE
to employees:
— on 8 June 2009 —ETNFRANR 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
TN AZARIHE 10%
—on8June2009 — ZETAFASANH 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TTAELAZAEE 10%
—on8June2009 —Z—ETAFASNANA 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ETNEL A= AREHIE 10%
—on8June2009 ——EFTAFSNANA 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TTHEL A= AT 10%
— on 8 June 2009 —EEAFERANE 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—TTHELAZARHSE 10%

Total share options 1% F B IR 4 &
granted 14,532,000
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and weighted average

20 LARE#?

= N\ 7

2 (18)

& E IR AR

(b) WIS B RInEFIHT

exercise prices of share options are as BEWOT :
follows:
2010 2009
—E2-ZF ZETNE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
g5 niEFH
T BRESE 1T{E(E kS A
(in RMB) 000 (in RMB) '000
(AR%) ¥ (ANR#) T
Outstanding at the beginning 7 4 ¥ B 14 5K 771
of the year 0.63 14,322 — -
Granted during the year FRF D - - 0.63 14,532
Exercised during the year FRITE 0.32 (2,821) — —
Forfeited during the year FREM 1.01 (210) 1.05 (210)
Outstanding at the end R B M AR ITE
of the year 0.50 11,291 0.63 14,322
Exercisable at the end RERBEAITHE
of the year 1.01 67 — —

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for shares options exercised during the
year was HK$5.42 (2009: not applicable).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010
had an exercise price of HK$0.1 or HK$1.19 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.43
years (2009: 9.43 years).

RAFITENBRES - 171
BIREMINEFHEE AF5L.42

7T (
JrAp—

—ETNF : TERA) -

—2F£+-A=+—H

MARITENBRENTEES
0BT K198 T - H#EF
BRI BE LD FH B8A3F (=
TENEF  9.43%F) °
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ERAERNRO IR

20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20 /{
(continued) 5_'7

& I é"
/ultH

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
pased on a binomial model. The contractual life of
the share option is used as an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Weighted average fair value at RETE AR METH
measurement date (HK$) ~RBECET)

Share price (HK$) BB (A&T)

Exercise price (HK$) TEE (B T)

Expected volatility T8 HR R 18

Option life (in years) PR EF ()

Expected dividends TEHIRR B

Risk-free interest rate R b )

The expected volatility is based on the average
of the historical daily volatility of ten comparable
companies as of the grant date over the shorter
of 10 years and the period up to the listing date.
Expected dividends are based on management’s
best estimate. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, equity-
settled share-based payments expenses amounted
to RMBS8,413,000 (2009: RMB6,435,000) were
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

BREBREZRRBNALE
E2ERIBRENAAEE
AE - REBRENAAEE
TiER — ARG - BiE
MAENFHREZELNGE
2% -

MEREAARERRE

2.0

2.268

0.1 or1.134
52.8%

10

0%

2.84%

BEHKEB D RBEEANKRERE
MTRETRAERRBET
FHERLAHRELHAMZ
fM(MEREE)NBEFEE
HRIEETE - B REXTIH
EEEFELNREMG - T8
ARBERNNEEHRAE
ﬁﬁ;ﬁr*ﬁﬁk?&;

RUERB AR TERENK
- FEMEINRBERET
BEHMAAEER  LRERE
&R - MBI R T R
R R 8

RBE_ZT—ZTF+ A4
:Jrfajtir“ ERAHE

HRTHEZN AR EENR
NENHAZEERARKE
8,413,000 (ZZEZENF : A
R #6,435,0007T) °
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21 Income tax in the balance sheet 21 EEEBERANAEN
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) SEAREFTAMEDHRE
represents: &:
The Group
NEE

2010 2009

—E-TF ZZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBF T

Provision for PRC income tax FARATEASHEE

for the year (Note 7(a)) (Bt 5E7(a)) 9,660 63,731
Provision for Hong Kong FRABBNEHEH

Profits Tax for the year (Bt 5E7(a))

(Note 7(a)) 3,745 1,866
PRC income tax paid B R EETER (26,216) (33,443)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREAEFIEH (81) (334)

(12,892) 31,820
Balance of PRC income tax and @EEE 5
Hong Kong Profits Tax o B AT S B
relating to prior years BB G H 4 % - —
(12,892) 31,820
Represented by:
Income tax payables FERTBNEA P15 B - 31,820
Income tax recoverable JiE Uk BD ER P 15 B (12,892) —
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21 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

The Group

The components of deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Inventory
provision Accruals

FEKE it
% &R
RMB’000 RMB’000

21 EE &

(&)

Advertising
and
promotional
expenses
exceeding
the
deduction
allowance
limit in the
current year
to be carried
forward (i)
THETEE
MELEREHE
EREBARE
ERAMNB
RENSD
RMB’000

%M@

I ERAMNAER

REHEERBERABRNE
ERIREERNAEKILD REF

REBDT :

Tax
losses

(i)

B
R
RMB’000

Others Total

Aft Ch

RMB’000 RMB’000

Deferred tax arising from: EEHBELR :
At 1 January 2009 “ZENF-A-AH - -
Credited to profit or loss FAER - -

At 31 December 2009

At 1 January 2010 “¥-T5-f-H° - -
Credited to profit or loss AAERE 1,811 7,199

13,224

4,591

264 27,089

At 31 December 2010 F
+—8 1,811 7,199

13,224

4,591

264 27,089
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21 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 21 EEEAERAMNHEN
(&)

The Group (continued) TEE(E)

Notes: aEc

(i) According to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, (i) REBFEARANBEBRE
the annual deduction limit of advertising and promotional RARGH  B=FTFNF—A
expenses for cosmetic manufacturing enterprises is 30% of —HEREE_ZT-ZF+_A
total sales, effective from 1 January 2008 till 31 December =t—Hik tHhmEERCES
2010. The advertising and promotional expenses exceeding FHEEREBBRAMBRER
the annual deduction allowance limit can be carried forward BIEHEBHI0% BERSEE
for deduction in future years. Accordingly, deferred tax BEASFNMERRE - AL
assets arising from the advertising and promotional expenses EEARFEEBEMRE - Bt
exceeding the deduction allowance limit in the current year AREREEREFEBERAR
to be carried forward is recognised. It is determined by F 2 0 BR PR B T AT DA A5 8 DA 1R R
management that it is probable that future taxable profits will EREEMBRHIMD ER T HEN
be available for these temporary differences to reverse in the EEMBHEE -EREEFAX
foreseeable future. SEEATRERENRRRAEESE

T2 % 0 JIE B M B AR DA B 40 55 L Al
BEINEREESR -
(ii) The tax losses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2010 (ii) TEEBEARBERMNBE

by Bawang Beverage incorporated in the PRC will expire in five
years. It is determined by management that it is probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilized
will be available before they expire.

124 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited & F B (£ & )& B R 2 )

E—ZEFE+-_A=+—HLFE
EENRBERERAXRAFA
Y -EERERAAKEEAR
R R RARAJ R A R S B B B
FEAAE N ELHEESR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 48 = B &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

21 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 21 EEBEBEEANNFEN

(%)

(c) Deferred tax liability recognised: (c) EEZENEEZERTFAR
The deferred tax liability recognised in the REHEEBERABRNE
consolidated balance sheet and the movements EHREEEREFANEFHN
during the year are as follows: ™

Deferred tax

liability arising

from

undistributed

earning of

PRC subsidiary

REH A A

KORBREEN

EEHREBEAE

At 1 January 2009 R-ZZEZENF—HA—H 6,369
Charged to profit or loss FFAER 20,062
Payment KEZAT (6,369)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H 20,062
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FTF—H—H 20,062
Charged to profit or loss FFAER —
Payment REZH (18,031)
At 31 December 2010 RNZZE—ZEF+=-_A=+—H 2,031

e - £ = = -
(d) Reconciliation to the balance sheet d RRERABEHIE
The Group
A&

2010 2009

—E-FE —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised MNEEBBEXRPHERAL
in the balance sheet FIERIBE EF 27,089 —
Net deferred tax liability recognised NEE B B X P AL

in the balance sheet BERIBERFE (2,031) (20,062)
25,058 (20,062)
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends

The reconciliation between the opening and closing

22 B

CEERRE

B A GHER S BRI H

balances of each component of the Group’s El’\] HAY ELHA R 45 84 2 fEI ) B B
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated REHEZEBRFZES - K
statement of changes in equity. Details of the 7 RE & % AE B EB 0 RO B ) B
changes in the Company’s individual components ,HH REHZHERNEHFB W
of equity between the beginning and the end of the I
year are set out below:
The Company ENF
Retained
eamnings/
Share Share Capital  Translation (accumulated Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve losses) equity
BREA/
iz B& RAEE BRfE EifE (RHER) EREHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2009 R-ZZEEAFE-F-AH
fegeas - - - 4 (7.597) (7,59)
Changes in equity for 2009: ZEERNEREEE
Dividends approved in respect of BiEZEEERE
the previous year - - - - (249,680) (249,680)
Purchase of own shares BHtEZAEERE
— par value paid - - - - - -
Shares issued under REERETERG
initial public offering g 256,134 1,342,774 - - - 1598908
Equity settled share-based INEREENRN
ransactions RS - - 6,435 - - 6,435
Total comprehensive income FREANEER
for the year - - - @ 253,860 253,856
Balance at RZZBNE
31 December 2009 and +ZB=1+-Bk
1 January 2010 ZZ-Z%-f-H
3 256,134 1,342,774 6,435 - 8417) 1,601,926
Changes in equity for 2010: CE-ZERRAE:
Dividends approved in respect BitEZEEERE
of the previous year 22(0)i) - - - - (216,108 (216,108)
Dividends declared in respect %03
of the current year TEERE 20 - - - - (101,600) (101,600)
Shares issed Under share REERE
option scheme srEIBTHRG 2200 246 5,865 (5,180) - - 91
Equity settled share-based NEREEDRR
transactions RS - - 8413 - - 8418
Total comprehensive income FREANEER
for the year - - - (34,877) 312,461 277,584
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-%%
+ZA=+-B% 256,380 1,348,639 9,668 (34,877) (8,664) 1,671,146
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 22 BRAS -~ B R KR E (@)

(b) Dividends (b) &R
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) LFREEBFEAER
shareholders of the Company ELEMRERRE
attributable to the year
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREETF T
Interim and special dividends R BN B IR B 8
declared and paid of EEMENR - B
HK4 cents per ordinary share & i H&LS% 441
(2009: nill) ( ZETNF  F) 101,600 —
Final and special dividends HEHEBBREZ -
proposed, approved and Ttt R T B R
paid after the end of s ﬂl BRI IR S
the reporting period (ZEZThF :
(2009: HK8.5 cents BREARAESS)
per ordinary share) - 216,108
101,600 216,108
The final and special dividends proposed, REEEH%IES  HER
approved and paid after the balance sheet A5 IR HA A0 B AR ST
date have not been recognised as a liability at ARBEABELEZE
the balance sheet date. BE o
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 22 &K -~ EE R K E (@)

(b) Dividends (continued) (b) &R (&)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) REARELERETLF
shareholders of the Company BagaAXAmllaE
attributable to the previous financial MBEERMERR
year, approved and paid during the year

2010 2009
—E-ZfF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Final and special dividends in A A#EE & XA
respect of the previous LA BF BRF R F R
financial year, approved and RE - SREER
paid during the year, of B4 251
HK4.25 cents per ordinary (2009%F : G| E B
share (2009: RMBO0.12 AR¥0.127T)
per ordinary share) 108,054 249,680
Special dividends in respect RFE R AE RS H
of the previous financial year, VA 7% BF B 6F 2 45 B
approved and paid during RE - SlREBER
the year, of HK4.25 cents B4 251
per ordinary share (2009: nil) (ZEENEF  F) 108,054 —
216,108 249,680
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

22 RA -~ B RKRE @

(c) Share capital (c) B&=&
Authorised and issued share capital EERBRITERS
2010 2009
—E-FF ZTTNF
No. of shares No. of shares
% 7 2 B i 5 &8
(’000) RMB’000 ('000) RMB’000
(F) AR¥T T (F) AR®Tr
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FRoOABITZ
HK$0.1 each LEAR 10,000,000 880,500 10,000,000 880,500
Ordinary shares, EERTRHE
issued and EBER
fully paid:
At 1 January mn—A—H 2,905,000 256,134 - —
Shares repurchased el 8 % 17 — - - -
Shares issued # 2R 1D - - 10 1
Capitalisation issue EN(435 - - 2,099,990 185,156
Shares issued under BRAHEES
initial public offering BT 2B - - 805,000 70,977
Shares issued under IR 15 AR R AT Bl
share option scheme (i) 17 Z I 17() 2,821 246 - -
At 31 December R+-B=+—H 2,907,821 256,380 2,905,000 256,134

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

TEaRsEAGRERTKE
KBRS  REARAIEZELE
BER—ZHREE  -HARQF
MESREEMS  TAELTAER
ZERSER -
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(i)

22 IR -

EEBRKRE @

Shares issued under share option (i) REBKREFBERETZ
scheme B {7
In July 2010, options were exercised to RZZE—ZTFLH  BR
subscribe for 2,820,720 ordinary shares in the HEEA ANEATHERRE
Company at a consideration of HK$1,067,657 7 B 2N A 72,820,720 %
(equivalent to approximately RMB931,424) TR - THEERERX
of which HK$282,072 (equivalent to B ¥ (8 51,067,657 78
approximately RMB246,080) was credited to T & AR #931,424
share capital and the balance of HK$785,585 JL) o B R AR
(equivalent to approximately RMB685,344) & %8 5 282,072 7% 7T (3T
was credited to the share premium account. A AR ¥ 246,080 7T)
RMB5,179,928 has been transferred from the HTABRKEZENESEA
capital reserve to the share premium account 785585 IL(Fra AR
in accordance with policy set out in Note 2()) ¥ 685,344 7T) ° Itk o -
(ii). 1B & M 5 2() i) P it &9 &
SR ARBME ARG
8 H A K #5,179,928
TERAKRE °
Terms of unexpired and unexercised (i) PEHEEBXREXBREKRTT
share options at balance sheet date R EER
2010 2009
Exercise —E-FF —ETNF
price Number Number
Exercise period T4 HA THEE A EgE]
4 July 2010 to —E-ZF+AMNBZE HK$0.1 6,300,000 8,400,000
8 June 2019 —E-AFERANAR
HK$1.19 4,991,280 5,922,000
11,291,280 14,322,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in Note
20(a) to the financial statements.
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
of the Company is governed by the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The
funds in the share premium are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2(j)(iii).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of
the PRC subsidiary of the Group, Bawang
Guangzhou. Transfers to the reserves were
approved by the board of directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

22 |RA -~ EEkRE @

(i)

(iii)

B % RE

AR A PR A (B AR ) 8
XHREBERANE(EE
RFTRE - BRIFRREE
KA EH B #IR - K
NRIBRNEERTEER
PR BER - BRIAR
BENGIE Y AL DT
ROEBRE °

&34 ]

BT ADQAE B B
RITENE D - BERF
THEN AR BERRW
FE23)Gi)IR 2 Z 4 B & 5
BERERNFEEPER -

o B & E i e
TEUXE B IIRIEAR
o B AR B N AR B DA e AN &=
BB LRBEE
MERRIERRIL - B
WHEBEEFEIEMNES
A -
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iii) PRC statutory reserves (continued)

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang Beverage,
which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer
at least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting
prior year losses), as determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to
statutory general reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital
under the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the entity. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before distribution
of dividends to the equity shareholder.
The statutory reserve balance of Bawang
Guangzhou has reached 50% of its registered
capital, hence, no further transfer to statutory
reserves was made by Bawang Guangzhou
since 2008. No appropriation to statutory
reserves was made by Bawang Beverage as of
31 December 2010, as it recorded a loss for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate
to their existing percentage of equity interests
provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

22 B

CEBERRE @

(iii) REEERMB(E)
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang Hong Kong,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired all the equity interest of Bawang
Guangzhou amounting to US$12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company
owned by the Controling Shareholders,
at a consideration of the same amount.
Accordingly, the share capital of Bawang
Guangzhou was eliminated and a merger
reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements in foreign
currency.

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2010 was RMB1,339,975,000 (2009:
RMB1,339,357,000).

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital
base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. The Group defines the capital of the
Group as the total shareholders’ equity.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

22 IS~ Bk RE

(iv) &6FeEim

RZZEZLF+ZA=+
B ARRZ2EWBAR
BITEABUREEBK
812,500,000 T E T
BN 2E#zm (2 AR iE
RIRRER & — KA Bl
B) ALBITEMOK
RIS - R AE R
EHEELAHREE -

(v) EER MW
X e ERRE NG
AAEMMEmRMELD
EEPENER -

(vi)

R # 1,339,975,000 7T
(ZEZThhEFE: ARK
1,339,357,0007T) °

AEBERHREERFRIZE
ARER - LR EREARTS
B0 AR F AR R %
R AEEBERAERHBR

R AR o

AR AR E AR E A B
HONRERRERS
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23 TRiEREERAAEBE

23 Financial risk management and fair

values

The Group has exposure to the following risks in the AEBRBEEBBEPERIUT
normal course of business: [ Bz

e Foreign currency risk o SMNER R

e Interest rate risk . ﬂ X [E g

e Credit risk s FERR
e Liquidity risk mEE € R R

This note presents information about the Group’s AMFEEFAEBAEE AR i
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s R ANEEFHEEEERRADB
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and = BREERF

managing risk.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for EEerRBERYNEBRLRE

the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework.

The Group’s risk management policies are established
to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The
Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

MEREERE -

A& EFIERREEBRR - @A
RoMASEMERSRR  RZ
HEEORR ERREFEE - AR
BRI SEERELRIAA
$EIEHH$MJJ—LMEEEEK%&%
7 ARBRT ISR R AN B XK
E’J“@J AEBEEHEZEBEINE
BARERERF  BRALEZBLRED
MEERE  EMERETHEES
BB RE N B AE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt %% 3R = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases and other transactions
which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate.

Included in assets and liabilities are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

23 eRiEREERAALEBE

REBAZNINERR TR
BEENMEMRIBELHNIAIN
BIER R - AR RER
THEH IRZUAKLERD)
REEBW AN EHEHETT -

FABERBEENERIEE
BEEAIINEE T ERNKRIENA
™~

At 31 December

wn+=—A=+—8H
2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEZEY
HK$ ('000) B (F) 133,779 1,686,944
US$ ('000) Zx(Fr) 2,846 302
SG$ ('000) o (Fx) - -
Prepayment EARIE
Us$ (000) Ex(F7T) 1,640 1,777
HK$ ('000) Bt (FT) 553 —
SG$ ('000) oo (For) 54 -
Trade and other receivables ¥ 5 [ H b f& U 5 18
HK$ ('000) B (F) 22,556 19,905
Bank loans and overdraft RITERREX
HK$ ('000) B (FT) = (180,000)
US$ (000) Ex(Fr) (31,690) -
Trade and other payables ESRHEMENRE
HK$ ('000) Bt (FT) (7,868) (5,728)
US$ (000) Ex(Fx) = (1,109)
Current tax payables EENH B E
HK$ (°000) BT (FT) (3,759) (1,740)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt #% 3k = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 TREREERAAEE
values (continued) (%)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
on the bank deposits, prepayment, trade and
other receivables, bank loans and overdraft, other
payables and current tax payables. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily Hong Kong
Dollars (“HKD”) and United States Dollars (“USD”).

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency sensitivity is calculated based
on the major net foreign currency exposure of the
Group as at the balance sheet dates, assuming 5%
shift of RMB against HKD and USD are as follows:

Results from a 5% strengthening of the RMB
against HKD and USD on the loss after tax and
accumulated losses as at 31 December 2010 (or
on the profit after tax and retained earnings at 31
December 2009) are shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

Zii‘ilEfE’_T?*’“ 8 5 3K

B 5 REMEWRIA fE
ﬁféffkliaﬁii H Al & A 5T
&E’éﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ\\lﬁ
R EBHRABRNERER
RETTET]) RET(E
JTl) e

HBMESH
$ETF$E@E<\%§ HEyE 25
PE % B2 AT E R SNE SRR D
T (REARELEBTR
KTTIERFEES) :

AREEBTRETHES
BEYR _ZT—ZF+ A
=+ —HMBRBEEERRR
BEEIR _ZTAF+_A
=+ — B8R EE RN RIRB
%T’if'J%”*EZzDT?é@J ZAMR
Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ“a(tﬁmﬂ <)
RIF B o

(Increase)/
decrease on loss
after tax and
accumulated

loss as at

31 December 2010
BRBEEBAR

Rt &R

(), w2

Effect in RMB’000
HK$ T
Us$ ET
SG$ 23 ot
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

23 TRiEREERAAEBE

(&)

Increase/
(decrease) on profit
after tax and
retained

earnings at

31 December 2009
R A0 12 0 N Jo

B1FE %7
Gl A)
RZEZTAF
+=—A=+—8H
ARET T

Effect in RMB’000 LAARFToE
HK$ BT (66,891)
Us$ ETT (332)
SG$ TNy —

A 5% weakening of the RMB against the above

currencies at 31

December 2010 would have

had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all other variables remain constant.

BEMBEMEERIFITE -
RZE—ZTF+_HA=+—H
AREY il B E%S
HEXHIRNEECRBELESE
BRERMFELE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 TREREERAAEE
values (continued) (&)

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest risk,
respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial

BEMEMFZBNENTEE
BMTADREAKEERRS
mbgﬂfﬂ RRAEBEHNE
B AEBHEEEERN
T'JZ‘MHA%EATX()

() #=EHES
TREFLAEERGEE R
e mEER T AN

instruments at the balance sheet date. KBS -
The Group
2010 2009
“E-EF ZTTNF
Effective Effective
interest Amount interest Amount
rates S H rates + 8
BRA= '000 BT '000
AR®T T ARBTT
Fixed rate instruments: EFZEMIA
Financial assets SREE
— Deposits with banks —BERAE
within three months =EAMNEH
to maturity when § R 17 € 8
placed T 1.71%-1.80% 614,976 0.22% 264,150
— Deposits with banks —BERERE
within six months 7~ EAREIH
to maturity when f) IR 1T 3 HA
placed Zex 1.98% 60,000 - -
— Cash at bank —EHER 0.01%-1.35% 511,257  0.01%-0.36% 1,351,071
— Pledged deposits —EBEX 2.25% 220,000 0.56% 162,012
Financial liabilities cRAR
— Bank loans and —RITERE
overdrafts EX 3.30% (209,787) - -
1,196,446 1,777,233
Variable rate instruments FHNEEMTE
Financial liabilities tRaR
— Bank loans and —BIERR
overdrafts EX - - 1.64% 158,490
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M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 25 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB2,627,047 (2009:
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax and retained earnings by
approximately RMB650,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative  financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 25
basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet
date. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis for 2009.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group’s trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

23 s EREERAAEBE

(i) HBUEDH
RZE—ZFF+ A
=+—H BMNXEERE
EAH T BE25EE
MABEEMAEZREEZHS
BAE - RSB RBR
MeEBERZE2TERK
M ARE
2,627,047 T(Z 2 & N,
F o BRB AR R AR B
iR IR o |- A
A R #650,0007T) °

R BURE D AT T RER R
REPNEEALE - I
ERREZAEFEZT
R FEOTE & B T AT
HZMEERE o FEE
o8 3 T #8925 fE & B R KR
EEEHMNEREET—
BEEEEARBZA
2 K A] BE B AR L RO AT
e PMERE_ZTTN
FHECEEETT -

ERERERETEFXERT
ARXGHELBTHEANEE
MERAEERZ Y E R
R\ - BREARREZREANE
BB S MEAMERFIR - &
BEERZY —EFHEER X

KEERZEERARAR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 smiEMREERAAEE

values (continued) (%)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group has established a credit policy
under which credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These receivables are
generally due within 30-180 days from the date of
billing. Credit limit is established for each customer
which represents the maximum open amount or
credit term without requiring approval from the
Board of Directors. These limits are reviewed
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s
benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the
Group on a prepayment basis. The Group chases
the customers to settle the due balances and
monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing
basis. The Group does not collect collateral in
respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk of the
total trade receivables due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers as follows:

AEENEERRERRZME
EFMERNBRAZE - N&E
ERY—EGHERER  BiY
FEREERNEFETRER
Al - ZF R IE — RNER
B % H B HR30=180H A 2
H - AREEPARHNERR
BIEBAREZSHENER
EREEXERY  ARRE
REBFERE - ANEANKEE
RBRENEP A ABEMNE A &
AEBERS - AEBREFE
WEIH &S WRBE RN
BR - NEEVERE S NE
i FE W SR IR B o

AEEE-ERENERER
Rk - AT SAREBHRKREP
REAREFNE S RKIAL
B

At 31 December

WR+Z—A=+—H
2010 2009
—z-=5 —ETAE
Due from JEUA T AL3008
— largest customer — &AEP 6% 6%
— five largest customers — RIREAREF 11% 15%

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group does not
provide guarantees which would expose the Group
to the credit risk.

EmiERERSEHEERRE
RABEREMEENREE °
AEBITSHAAXNEER
@ IEHEEIR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair 23 sRiEKREERAAEE
values (continued) (48)

Other than those trade and other receivables that
impairment losses have been made for (Note 15(b)),
there are no other significant credit risks identified.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall
due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash on demand to meet its liquidity
requirement in the short and longer term;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters.

BREFELREBENE S ME
i, & W 5% I8 (BfY & 15(b)) b -
I % 3 Bl b E i E K E AR

LA
a0
A

o

RBETRBREANREELRE
TEHNBBEEEOHRER - &N
SEEERPESARNT
A REBEERRE-REER
BRTEERHNRBDE /E
NEHNAE  EAKEHEA
EEMEERINEBERIBER
BrE R -

AEBEERERZERTEH
RefEl UWneHEBRHREE
HRBESF R - ETBEE
EREBFHNREREBR (B

R K == N7 =1
AKEIVNBEZE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

23 T RIEREERK A

(%)

e

il

\

(continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

TRAMRNGEERAEE 22
BMEECAKRTAMNI MK
HoBUEDNBEHRFTRRAS
mE(BRIEAKNF XK (F
P REEANRITNXRGE
MMEREB) R AKE BN
ZHEFERHEHE

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow

SHRTHRBE 2R
2010 2009
—E-—ZF —EENEF
Within 1 year or Within 1 year or
on demand on demand
1FRFEER 1FRHEER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERREX 213,058 158,490
Trade and other payables B 5 MEADER IR 225,036 293,839
Amounts due to related parties  FEf BAHS 5 7008 3,363 5,896
441,457 458,225

Forward foreign exchange REPINES Y — mi

contracts — outflow 213,770 —
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ¥E RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

° Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs
are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data

23 siEREERAAEBE
(#8)

() BM2aRBEHENSE
IR
UTREZ2HRTEEAR
REARBEBEBRMBREE
AIE7RIz@ T A - #
FIPFEEN =1
BEAMNEDHNARAR
EBEAENEHEE M
BEsMIARTE2ER
HIEEAREBEAARE
REEN2HHORIERH
KR - BESRFIRL
T
. BIRBEZR):

2GBTS E
AemITANRE
(REHAB)FER
nEE

o F2: 2REETM
LHREUEm T A
MRE H2HE
Z2HEERAME
ERA SRS
RN =R T

BErn{EE

o FEIM(HEFH) :
TAEZ2HILF
ERABERMH R
BOGERMR
R EE
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MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

23 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(M

(i)

23 eREREERAALEBE

(%)

Financial instruments carried at fair (i) LAREEFENEA
value (continued) IR(E)
2010 The Group
A&
Level 2
ER
RMB’000
ARET T
Liabilities afE
Derivative financial instruments EeRIA
— Forward exchange contracts — ERBHINESG X 3,757
There was no financial instrument carried at fair RZZEZENLE+ A
value as at 31 December 2009. =+—BRBEUAREE
FFTEMNESRIA -
During the years ended 31 December 2010, REE_ZT—ZF+_HA
there was no transfer between instruments in = t—HIEFELEFE
Level 1 and Level 2. mME2F2EHERNE
FrofE
Fair value of financial instruments (i) ELOARBEEAENSE

carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
their respective fair values as at 31 December
2010 and 2009 due to the short maturities of
these instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B35 8RR MM

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

24 FEIE

@ =-—=22—2F+_-A
E+—HAEBREMBHEE

24 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2010 not provided for in the

financial statements were as follows: AR TERXIENT :
2010 2009
e ZZEThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBF T
Contracted for B4 27,923 3,503
(b) At 31 December 2010, the total future b)) R-—=E—EF+_-A

minimum lease payments under non-

ZEt+—H FxKEFUAR

cancellable operating leases are HEEHEEAMERER
payable as follows: BEHESBEMT :
The Group
REE
At 31 December
W+=—A=+—8H
2010 2009
—e-%% —2TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Leases expiring: FRAVR T EAFE B B
Within 1 year 1R 3,224 2,777
Between 1 and 2 years 1Z24 3,048 686
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 2,864 730
Between 3 and 6 years 3ZE64F 814 1,217
Over 6 years RR6F 1,694 —
Total “Et 11,644 5,410
The significant leasing arrangements  under KEHEBRTHWEEZHELH

operating leases include the lease of the production
premises and office from Guangzhou Bawang
Cosmetics Co., Ltd. as set out in Note 25(a)(i).

(BfEMEMBE BB R
REAEBEEREMRAE)

B M 5E25(a)() °
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Bt #% 3k = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors
are of the view that related parties of the Group include
the following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

RS &

PN
HE—_T—ZF+_-_A=+—HIt
FE BERAEAEENER S
FEATAL/ QA :

Relationship with the Group
B 55 B WY BA 1R

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
BREUR S 4

Ms. WAN Yuhua
BEELZLT

Actual Reality Inc.

Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging
Materials Co., Ltd.
BINTERBEMEBERAR

Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products
Company Limited
EMNERELERAT

Guangzhou Bawang Comsmetics Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Bawang”)

BNBELM@AR AR ( [EMBE] )

Controlling Shareholder
PERRAR R

Controlling Shareholder
PERRARR

100% owned by the Controlling Shareholders
HIEARAR R 100% A

Under the control of Controlling Shareholders’
close family member

ER A R BB RE YR R EERK B 12 )

Under the control of Controlling Shareholders’
close family member

AR B R E YR R EERK B 12 )

Effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders

AR R 100% 8 WA

Production premises and office lease
agreements

Bawang Guangzhou, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a production premise and
office lease agreement on 22 January 2008,
pursuant to which Bawang Guangzhou leased
from Guangzhou Bawang the production
premise and office building with a total floor
area of 16,735 square metres. The term of the
lease under the agreement is 3 years with a
fixed monthly rental payable of RMB184,083,
commencing from 4 December 2007 .

() SEFEERBAETHSR
Y
FITEMN(ARANEE
MEBARD REMBEBER
—EENF—HA-_+—H
AIVAEERERBAEMA
Emz o B FLEMN
mEMBIAAREEE
516,735 5 KB £ E MR
ERPAEETF o i
BETIWHASER —_ET+F
+—AMBRBER - A
=F - SAERNETEES
A ANR#184,0837T ©
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Bt %% 3R = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(0

(i)

Production premises and office lease
agreements (continued)

On 21 January 2011, Bawang Guangzhou
and Guangzhou Bawang entered into an
agreement pursuant to which the production
premise and office lease agreement was
renewed for a term of three years commencing
from 4 December 2010, at a fixed monthly
rental of RMB184,083.

Purchase of raw materials from related
parties

25 EREBMAIR S (&)

() SERERMAEHER

W (E)

BE N BN B =
ET——F—FH=-+—Hx

MEZW*EEEY A

HE-T-TF+-AM
AEAME HohE
8 A A R #184,0837

(i) AABETEERAH

2010 2009
—E-—ZF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREETTT

Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging BN T & X 82 & M &
Materials Co., Ltd. BRAR 5,227 4,624

Guangzhou Chenming Paper & N 2 B 4% &

Products Company Limited BRAFA 9,013 9,925

The directors have confirmed that the basis of
consideration for the above purchase of raw
materials from related parties is the prevailing
market price.

EXDWER - LatrRa
TREERMBNEEESE
HERBBRTME -
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Bt %5 48 = B 6

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties
(continued)

(iii) Utilities expenses paid on behalf of the

25 EXEBELI RS @)

(a) REABFTOXS (FE)

(iii) KXEXKEZFBKESR

Group
2010 2009
—g-%f —mEnE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT
Guangzhou Bawang BEMEE 5,031 5,733
The directors are of the opinion that the EERA AN LW
above transactions set out in Note 25(a)(i), 25(a)()) ~ 25(a)(ii) & 25(a)(iii)
25(a)(i) and 25(a)(ii) with related parties were Fir %I B2 BB 5 B X 5 TH AT
conducted on normal commercial terms in the AEEBBREPREER
ordinary course of business. FIRFGETT o
(iv) Repayment of advertising fee paid by a (v MRABAEEREKRETSE
related party on behalf of the Group EXfrnEEEH
2010 2009
—e-%F —TTAf
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET % ARBF T
Actual Reality Inc. - 42,891
(v) Net repayment of advances to (v) EEBREBERREAEEELAK
Controlling Shareholders HESERRIE
2010 2009
—e-%F —TTAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTF T
CHEN Qiyuan BoR RN IR — 104,318
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B35 8RR MM

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REERBAI  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions 25 ERXEBARS @)
(continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HFEBAHXEXS(E)
(continued)
(vi) Short-term advance to Guangzhou (vii MFEMNEEIZABER
Bawang 2®
2010 2009
—g-2% —TEhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
Guangzhou Bawang BEMETE - 834
(vii) Repayment of advance from Guangzhou (vii BHBEEEZR
Bawang
2010 2009
—s-%2% —TEhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFT
Guangzhou Bawang BMET — 888
(b) Balances with related parties (b) 2 R BK 5 YK 82
As at the respective balance sheet dates, the Group REFHEEBAREBEEEE 5 R
had the following balances with related parties: REERIDTT
(i) Trade and other payables (i) BEHRHEMEFMRE
2010 2009
—g-2% —TEhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
Non-trade related FE 5
Guangzhou Bawang EIMNEHE 1,978 2,657
Trade related BEHE 5 HEE
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging BN T E R 2 &M &
Materials Co.,Ltd. AR AR 290 1,136
Guangzhou Chenming Paper =
Products Company Limited AR AR 1,095 2,103
Total 3,363 5,896
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Bt #% 3k = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAAREIR)

25 Material related party transactions
(continued)

() Trade and other payables (continued)

The above non-trade related balances are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment. As at 31 December
2010, the balance due to Guangzhou Bawang
mainly represented the rental payable for the
production premise provided by Guangzhou
Bawang from April to December 2010 and the
utility expenses paid by Guangzhou Bawang
on behalf of the Group for December 2010.

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as

25 EREBAIR S (®)

(i) BEZRHEMERKRIE
(48)
FHEFEESTEANLE
HABER 2B HEEE
TERP - R_ZT—FF
+—A=+—8 " EBNE
INBENEHREBEEAE
| B8 78 A3 A 2= 45 P i FE A
BEMNBEHN_—_Z—ZTFEN
AzE+-—AHAEBREM
FIRTEEZN_Z
—ZF+-AKEE -

TEEEABHHE AN ES
BN T AKREESRH
dIOMEBUREHEENS
CE R U

follows:

2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBF T
Short-term employee benefits HHEBERH 3,675 3,004

Contributions to defined AEHFCGRREEIHE K
contribution retirement plan 142 207
Equity compensation benefits B& 17 52 1+ 1@ F 5,543 4,296
Total HEt 9,360 7,507

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note
6(o)).

FMeEt AIBE IRAI(R
Bt E6(b)) °
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26

27

CBAAREHR)

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Fortune Station Ltd., which is incorporated
under the laws of BVI with limited liability and beneficially
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

Significant accounting estimates and
judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting application
of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results
to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to
be considered when reviewing the financial statements.
The following principal accounting policies involve the
most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future years is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

26

27
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27 Significant accounting estimates and
judgments (continued)

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult
to precisely estimate selling price because
quoted market prices for these assets may
not be readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining
an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as turnover and
operating costs.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of aging analysis and
evaluation of collectability. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment loss would affect the net profit in
future years.

27 EER = E+T$n+&5l:Jl%ﬁ// )
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27 Significant accounting estimates and

judgments (continued)

(continued)

(i) Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Any excess of the cost
over the net realisable value of each class of
inventories is recognised as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the normal course of business less
the estimated costs to completion and
the estimated expenses and related taxes
necessary to make the sale. For inventories
with committed sales orders or active market,
the Group estimates the net realisable value
with reference to the selling prices set out in
the committed sales orders or in the active
market. For inventories without committed
sales orders or active market, the Group
carefully estimates the net realisable value
based on available information and reasonable
and supportive assumptions on expected
selling prices, manufacturing costs, selling
expenses, sales tax and etc.

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgment on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Where the
final tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

27 T R AR H Mo
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28 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued the a number of amendments and
Interpretations and one new standard which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2010
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

28 REZ=Z—2F+_ 7
S+—AILEEBEAE
R AT | H AT

g_‘r

I RZENEELE

BEAPBHRERTEAE .mA
AAEAZESEEMRBE
BFET-HA=+— Htﬁ&ﬁ%i
M BRI MR BIRADN L IR
BRI M@EN L —H#ER - A
EAREEBERNERE

\|

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RAT5IE R
ZEHBRNETHRER

Revised |IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures
BB & St 2R RIS 2458 (IMERT) » BIIE 77 my 7 25

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
BIPR B F5 R S 22 A 22057 - 2@ T A

Improvements to IFRSs 2010

B HEREERNBE(—FT—FF)

Amendments to IAS 12, /Income taxes

FR gt EAFE125R (BRI AR) - i id

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

1 January 2011
i

1 January 2013
—=%—A—H

1duly 2010 or

1 January 2011
—E-TFLA—A%
—F-——%—-A—H

1 January 2012
c——F—A—H

AEBIEFAEZFETRENSGE
AR eELETYE -HER
Al A LE $EIE/L\E%FHJ:L{ H]
NARRIREH AR R AR & XA M
B EKE %%0
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(Expressed in RMB)
(AANR®5IR)

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-%F —TTNF —ZTENF -—gTiLHfE _-—BTAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREFTRT ARETIT ARETR
Results EF
Turnover BEE 1,475,355 1,756,001 1,411,248 921,680 392,369
Profit from operations W (131,573) 452 252 341,925 182,453 118,557
Net finance (costs) / income Bt 7% (B M),/
WA (2,558) (2,449) 3,117 (436) (664)
(Loss)/profit before taxation [ Fff 15 5% Al
(B8 &F (134,131) 449,803 345,042 182,017 117,893
Income tax credit/(expense)  FriSHE I,
(ZH) 16,160 (85,659) (63,268) 672) (1,934)
(Loss)/profit for the year ARAERFEEA
attributable to the EEFERA
equity shareholders (FB#8),/&F
of the Company (117,971) 364,144 281,774 181,345 115,959
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Property, plant and equipment #1 % - 5 & & & 60,136 39,330 31,510 22,571 23,949
Lease prepayments HBEBMKE - — — — 4,756
Prepaid advertising fee BRESER 2,437 6,081 - - -
Deferred tax assets EEREBEE 27,089 - — — -
Net current assets REEEFE 1,501,769 2,008,883 289,387 151,657 129,943
Total assets less BEAERRDAR
current liabilities 1,591,431 2,054,294 320,897 174,228 158,648
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEARE 2,031 20,062 6,369 — -
Net assets EERE 1,589,400 2,034,232 314,528 174,228 158,648
Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share capital/Paid-in capital IR /B &% &K 256,380 256,134 — - 118,813
Reserves B 1,333,020 1,778,098 314,528 174,028 39,835
Total equity R 1,589,400 2,034,232 314,528 174,228 158,648
(Loss)/earnings per share R (EE),/ BAH
(RMB yuan) (AR
Basic HA (0.04) 0.15 0.13 0.09 0.06
Diluted e (0.04) 0.15 0.13 0.09 0.06
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Five Years Summary (continued)

AFEMBBE(R)

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARMZIR)

Notes:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 December 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap.
22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company became the holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group on 31 December 2007 (“Reorganisation”). Further details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus of the Company dated 22 June
2009.

Although the Reorganization as referred to in the Prospectus has not been
completed until 31 December 2007, the Group is regarded as a continuing
group resulting the Reorganization.
statements have been prepared as a business combination under common

from The consolidated financial
control and have been prepared using the principles of merger accounting
as if the household and personal care products business (“HPC Products
Business”) of the Predecessor Entity as referred to in the Prospectus had
been operated by the companies now comprising the Group and the group
structure immediately after the Reorganization had been in existence since
1 January 2006. Accordingly, the consolidated income statements of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007 include the
results of the companies now comprising the Group and the operations of
the HPC Products Business of the Predecessor Entity. The consolidated
income statements for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010
only include the results of the companies now comprising the Group. The
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 presents the state of
affairs of the companies now comprising the Group and the HPC Products
Business of the Predecessor Entity. The Consolidated balance sheets as at 31
December 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 only present the state of affairs of the
companies now comprising the Group as at these dates.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the three years ended 31
December 2008 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the 2,100,000,000 ordinary shares, which comprise 10,000
ordinary shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus and 2,099,990,000
ordinary shares issued on 3 July 2009 by way of capitalisation from the
Company’s share premium account, as if the shares were outstanding
throughout the entire period.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

B

ARARAR_FZELF+_A+—BREFASH
BRAEE2E (— AN —FERBRLGE RE
RERSHEEIMRIAERRNAERRIT -
RZBELF+-_A=+—H AQXFAXRR
RAKAEEN AR ZEZRAR (TEA]) -
AREANHBRERARAR _ZZNFRA
“t-HENBRER -

BRERBREERMENEAEE_TTLF+=
A=+—BAF&%K BRAEEHRAHEH
M—EFBEFENEE - AHUBHRRRRZ
HEZEFHOEB AR  YARAAHE
A BERERMOAMASEENRABEA
SHEEQEBRRA—EARRAXNEAEENA
RS UTHEATKENAEERERRBE
—EERF-A—BR—EFE At - A%
EHE—TE R NFR-_ETLF+_A=1+—
BEFERNAHERRBE T RRAKASE®
MARIAKRASEEBNRABAZEREERER
MES - ALEEHE_TTNE —ZTTNF
T TF+-_A=+—HILFENAHE
HRECDERREKRAEBENARNEE - &
EER -_TERE+ A=+ -BHAHEE
BEXREN THEEMAKANE BN QR ARA S
ERENXAAAZREEREBNVBRLR - K
EER_ZTT+F —_ZTENF —_ZTTLhEF
r—ZE-—TE+_A=t+—HWAHEEAE
REZVBRERAEENARRZFAHD
B AR o

BE_ZZEN\F+_A=+—"HLE=ZEFE
NEREABAMNDBESFERARRAERF
BABGLER YBERIRE=ZEEEE ET
2,100,000,000R E @R (B HERBREER B H
BEZTMW10,000REBRINER=_ZZTNFL
BF=B#ARAARAZERERNEMBETH
2,099,990,000% & i@ %) &t & °

ERBES T AREE A G BRENH—H
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